
 

Camberwell Community Council 
 

January 13 2010 
7.00 pm 

Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Chair) 
Councillor John Friary 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor Jenny Jones 
Councillor Alison McGovern 
Councillor Chris Page 
Councillor Sandra Rhule 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Ian Wingfield (Vice-Chair) 
 

  
 

 
 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
 on 020 7525 7385  or email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk   
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: January 5 2010 
 

 
 

Open Agenda



 

Camberwell Community Council 
 

Wednesday January 13 2010 
7.00 pm 

Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 
 
 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME [CHAIR] 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 To follow 
 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ITEMS 
 

1 - 98 

 CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

 Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Chair)  
Councillor Ian Wingfield (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor John Friary Councillor Peter John 
Councillor Jenny Jones Councillor Alison McGovern 
Councillor Chris Page Councillor Sandra Rhule 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
 

 

   

 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 

 INFORMATION TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 Access to information 
 
You may request copies of minutes and reports on this agenda. 
 

For a large print copy of papers, please 
telephone 020 7525 7187. 
 
Deputations 
 
For information on deputations please ask the clerk for the relevant hand-
out. 
 
Carers’ allowances 
 
If you are a Southwark resident and have paid someone to look after your 
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you 
can attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. 
Please collect a claim from the clerk at the meeting. 
 
Transport assistance for disabled members of the public 
 
Members of the public with a disability who wish to attend community 
council meetings and who require transport assistance in order to access 
the meeting, are requested to call the meeting clerk. The clerk will arrange 
for a driver to collect the person and provide return transport after the 
meeting. There will be no charge to the person collected. Please note that 
it is necessary to call the clerk as far in advance as possible and at least 
three working days before the meeting. 
 
Wheelchair access 
 
Wheelchair access is available. For further information please call the 
meeting clerk. 
 

 

 
 



Item No.  
6

Classification: 
Open

Date:
2009

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council  

Report title: Development Control 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

All within [Camberwell Green, South 
Camberwell and Brunswick Park ] Community 
Council

From: Strategic Director of Regeneration and 
Neighbourhoods 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the determination of planning applications, or formal observations and 
comments, the instigation of enforcement action and the receipt of the 
reports included in the attached items be considered. 

2. That the decisions made on the planning applications be subject to the 
conditions and/or made for the reasons set out in the attached reports 
unless otherwise stated. 

3. That where reasons for decisions or conditions are not included or not as 
included in the reports relating to an individual item, they be clearly specified. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

4 The council’s powers to consider planning business are detailed in Article 
8 which describes the role and functions of the planning committee and 
Article 10 which describes the role and functions of community councils.  
These were agreed by the constitutional meeting of the Council on May 23 
2007 and amended on January 30 2008. The matters reserved to the 
planning committee and community councils Exercising Planning 
Functions are described in part 3F of the Southwark council constitution 
2007/08. These functions were delegated to the planning committee. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  

5. Members are asked to determine the attached applications in respect of 
site(s) within the borough. 

6. Each of the following items is preceded by a map showing the location of the 
land/property to which the report relates.  Following the report, there is a 
draft decision notice detailing the officer's recommendation indicating 
approval or refusal.  The draft decision notice will detail the reasons for any 
approval or refusal. 

Agenda Item 6
1



7. Applicants have the right to appeal to the First Secretary of State against a 
refusal of planning permission and against any condition imposed as part of 
permission.  If the appeal is dealt with by public inquiry then fees may be 
incurred through employing Counsel to present the Council's case.   

8. The sanctioning of enforcement action can also involve costs such as 
process serving, Court costs and of legal representation. 

9. Where either party is felt to have acted unreasonably in an appeal involving 
a public inquiry or informal hearing the inspector can make an award of 
costs against the offending party. 

10. All legal/Counsel fees and costs as well as awards of costs against the 
Council are borne by the Regeneration and Neighbourhoods budget. 

 EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES ON THOSE AFFECTED

11. Equal opportunities considerations are contained within each item. 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

 Strategic Director of Legal and Democratic Services

12. A resolution to grant planning permission shall mean that the Head of 
Development Control is authorised to grant planning permission.  The 
resolution does not itself constitute the permission and only the formal 
document authorised by the Committee and issued under the signature of 
the Head of Development Control shall constitute a planning permission. 
Any additional conditions required by the Committee will be recorded in the 
Minutes and the final planning permission issued will reflect the 
requirements of the Community Council. 

13. A resolution to grant planning permission subject to legal agreement shall 
mean that the Head of Development Control is authorised to issue a 
planning permission subject to the applicant and any other necessary 
party entering into a written agreement in a form of words prepared by the 
Strategic Director of Legal and Democratic Services, and which is 
satisfactory to the Head of Development Control.  Developers meet the 
Council's legal costs of such agreements.  Such an agreement shall be 
entered into under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 or under another appropriate enactment as shall be determined by 
the Strategic Director of Legal and Democratic Services.  The planning 
permission will not be issued unless such an agreement is completed. 

2



14. Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 
requires the Council to have regard to the provisions of the development 
plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 
considerations when dealing with applications for planning permission.  
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
provides that where, in making any determination under the planning Acts, 
regard is to be had to the development plan and the determination shall be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

15. The development plan is currently the Southwark Plan (UDP) 2007 
adopted by the council in July 2007 and the London Plan (consolidated 
with alterations since 2004) published in February 2008.  The enlarged 
definition of “development plan” arises from s38(2) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  Where there is any conflict with any 
policy contained in the development plan, the conflict must be resolved in 
favour of the policy which is contained in the last document to be adopted, 
approved or published, as the case may be (s38(5) Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

16. Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 introduced the 
concept of planning obligations.  Planning obligations may take the form of 
planning agreements or unilateral undertakings and may be entered into 
by any person who has an interest in land in the area of a local planning 
authority.  Planning obligations may only: 

 1. restrict the development or use of the land; 

 2. require operations or activities to be carried out in, on, under or over 
the land; 

 3. require the land to be used in any specified way; or 

 4. require payments to be made to the local planning authority on a 
specified date or dates or periodically. 

 Planning obligations are enforceable by the planning authority against the 
person who gives the original obligation and/or their successor/s. 

3



17. Government policy on planning obligations is contained in the Office of the 
Deputy Prime Minister Circular 05/2005.  Provisions of legal agreements 
must fairly and reasonably relate to the provisions of the development plan 
and to planning considerations affecting the land.  The obligations must also 
be such as a reasonable planning authority, duly appreciating its statutory 
duties, can properly impose, i.e. it must not be so unreasonable that no 
reasonable authority could have imposed it.  Before resolving to grant 
planning permission subject to a legal agreement Members should therefore 
satisfy themselves that the subject matter of the proposed agreement will 
meet these tests. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Background Papers Held At Contact
Council Assembly Agenda May 23 
2007 and Council Assembly 
Agenda  January 30 2008 

Constitutional Support 
Services, 
Southwark Town Hall, 
Peckham Road SE5 
8UB 

 [Community 
Council officer] 
020 7525 7234 

Each application has a separate 
planning case file 

Council Offices Chiltern 
Portland Street  
London SE17 

The named case 
Officer as listed or 
Gary Rice  
020 7525 5447 

4



APPENDIX 1 

Audit Trail

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance

Report Author Principal Planning Lawyer 
Constitutional Support Officer 

Version Final 
Dated Aug 26 2009
Key Decision No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 

included 
Strategic Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of 
Regeneration and 
Neighbourhoods 

No No 

Head of Development 
Control

No No 

5



ITEMS ON AGENDA OF THE CAMBERWELL CC

on Wednesday 13 January 2010

21 GROVE PARK, LONDON, SE5 8LHSite
Tree Preservation Order - works relatedAppl. Type

Felling of Eucalyptus in rear garden and replacement with indigenous species.
Proposal

09-AP-1698Reg. No.

TP/2154-20TP No.

South CamberwellWard

Neil LoubserOfficer

GRANT TPO CONSENTRecommendation Item /1

316-322 CAMBERWELL NEW ROAD, LONDON SE5Site
S.73 Vary/remove conds/minor alterationsAppl. Type

Variation of Condition 17 on approved application 09-AP-0717 dated 29/10/2009 (for a five storey building comprising an A1 retail
unit and 37 residential flats), in which Condition 17 restricted the hours of operation of the approved retail unit at Ground Floor level 
to "08:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Saturday or 11:00 to 22:00 on other Sundays and Bank Holidays" to now read: "The use hereby 
permitted to the ground floor for retail purposes (Class A1) shall not be carried on outside the hours of 07:00 - 23:00 Mondays to 
Saturdays, and 08:00-22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays".

Proposal

09-AP-2500Reg. No.

TP/2507-316TP No.

Camberwell GreenWard

Susannah PettitOfficer

GRANT SUBJECT TO LEGAL AGREEMENTRecommendation Item /2

FLATS 6-40, FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE, VESTRY ROAD, LONDON, 
SE5 8JW

Site
Council's Own Development - Reg. 3Appl. Type

Conversion of 35 existing sheltered accommodation flats at ground floor level, and associated areas, into 17 general needs flats (8 x 
two bed, 8 x three bed,1 x four bed), and associated landscaping and disabled parking bays and elevational alterations, including
works to the flats  to be insulated externally and over clad with brick slips and render, and three external stairs serving upper floors 
are to be removed and the three original internal stairwells are to be reinstated.

Proposal

09-CO-0095Reg. No.

TP/H2075TP No.

Brunswick ParkWard

Donald HancilesOfficer

GRANT PERMISSIONRecommendation Item /3

SPRINGFIELD LODGE, 1 GROVE HILL ROAD, LONDON, SE5 8DFSite
Full Planning PermissionAppl. Type

Demolition of the existing Springfield Lodge Hostel and the erection of a building of four storeys above lower ground floor, in
connection with use as a 35-bed hostel, with associated training facilities, car and cycle parking, amenity space and landscaping,
including works to trees and felling of trees.

Proposal

09-AP-2526Reg. No.

TP/2160-1TP No.

South CamberwellWard

Becky BakerOfficer

GRANT PERMISSIONRecommendation Item /4

SPRINGFIELD LODGE, 1 GROVE HILL ROAD, LONDON, SE5 8DFSite
Conservation Area ConsentAppl. Type

Demolition of the existing Springfield Lodge building.
Proposal

09-AP-2527Reg. No.

TP/2160-1TP No.

South CamberwellWard

Becky BakerOfficer

GRANT PERMISSIONRecommendation Item /5

CCAgenda.rpt

6



S
ca

le
 1

/1
76

8

D
at

e 
12

/1
1/

20
09

21
 G

R
O

V
E

 P
A

R
K

, L
O

N
D

O
N

, S
E

5 
8L

H

A
D

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

7



APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO TREES
ITEM

1
Classification

OPEN

Decision Level

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL 

Meeting Date 

January 13 2010 

From

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Title of Report

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT  
Works to TPO protected tree(s)  
Works to tree(s) in conservation area 
5 day notification of works to dead, diseased or 
dangerous tree(s)

Proposal  (09-AP-1698)

Felling of Eucalyptus in rear garden and 
replacement with indigenous species. 

Address
21 GROVE PARK, LONDON, SE5 8LH 

Ward South Camberwell  
Conservation Area Camberwell Grove

PURPOSE 

1 For consideration by Camberwell Community Council at the meeting 13/1/2010 
following deferral at the meeting 17/12/2009.  The case is for Community Council 
consideration due to the number of objections received.   The previously tabled 
Addendum Reports have now been combined into this agenda report.  

RECOMMENDATION
2 To permit the felling of the Eucalyptus Tree.

 BACKGROUND 

Site location and description
3

4

5

6

The site of 21 Grove Park, has been sub-divided, and is located on the southern side 
of Grove Park.  The subject site falls within the rear garden of No. 21, and comprises 
a rectangular block.    For the avoidance of doubt, the application site does not include 
the land known as 'land at the rear of 21 Grove Park' and which has frontage to 
Ivanhoe Rd. 

Grove Park is characterised by large detached buildings, many of them converted into 
flats, set back generously from the footpath and with big back gardens. The existing 
residential building at No. 21 is typical of these, and forms a semi-detached pair with 
No. 22.

The back garden of No. 21 was subdivided from the land at the rear (fronting Ivanhoe 
Rd) some time ago, and there is a timber close boarded fence delineating the 
premises at No. 21 from the ‘land at the rear of No. 21’.  There are existing garages 
on the site to the rear of no. 21 which are derelict and roofless at present.  These front 
onto Ivanhoe Rd. 

The site forms part of the Camberwell Grove Conservation Area.  The site at 21 Grove 
Park, along with the sites at 19 - 25a, are covered by an Area Tree Preservation 
Order No. 279 (2003) covering all trees on the sites. Providing the tree in question is 
6+ years old it is covered.

8



Details of proposed tree works
7

8

9

Felling of Eucalyptus in rear garden and replacement with indigenous species. 

The applicant initially applied also for works to a Bay tree in this application, however 
has now deleted that part of the application, so that only the works to the Eucalyptus 
are now proposed. 

The Eucalyptus stands 10m in height and some 8m from the rear of the house. The 
Eucalyptus is covered by a Tree Preservation Order. It is proposed to be felled due to 
subsidence to the house, which the applicant asserts the tree is the cause of, and a 
supporting report has been submitted which cites water deprivation in the soil caused 
by the tree. 

Planning history
10 Application LBS Reg 09AP0797 to fell one Eucalyptus tree and reduce one Bay tree 

by 30% in height and reduce the remainder of the tree by 25%  was determined 
18/6/09 with a resolution to refuse a Tree Preservation Order Consent, for the 
following reason:  

The application to fell one Eucalyptus tree and reduce the Bay tree by 30% in height 
and reduce the remainder of the tree by 25% would result in a detrimental impact to 
the visual appearance of the streetscene in particularly from Ivanhoe Road. It would 
therefore result in significant harm to the character and appearance of the Grove Park 
Conservation area. In these regards the scheme would be contrary to Policies 3.2 
'Protection of amenity', 3.13 'Urban design', 3.18 'The setting of listed buildings, 
conservation areas and world heritage sites' and 3.28 Biodiversity of the Southwark 
Plan (July 2007). 

11

12

13

14

Planning history of adjoining sites 
Land at the rear of 21 Grove Park
Planning application reference 09AP0545 was registered in relation to felling of trees.  
Trees had been felled early in 2008 following the issue of a letter dated 6/2/08 
authorising the felling of certain trees by the Council's Tree Officer.  The Council 
subsequently served a Tree Replacement Notice, which the land owner appealed.  
The TRN was upheld on appeal by the Planning Inspectorate's decision dated 
14/9/09.

Planning application reference 08AP2979 and application for conservation area 
consent (CAC) reference 08AP2982 were submitted for the demolition of the existing 
single storey garage and storage building facing onto Ivanhoe Road and the erection 
of one x four bedroom, two storey single family dwelling house, and one on-site car 
parking space.  These applications were appealed on the grounds of non-
determination and the appeals were dismissed having been considered concurrently 
with the above TRN appeal, by decision dated 14/9/09. 

Planning application reference 08AP1737 and application for conservation area 
consent (CAC) reference 08AP1738 were refused 22/12/08 having been considered 
at Camberwell Community Council 19/11/08.  The applications were for the demolition 
of existing single storey garage and storage building facing onto Ivanhoe Rd, and 
erection of one x 4 bedroom, two storey single family dwelling, with one off-street car 
parking space.  They were refused on the grounds of harm to the character and 
appearance of the Camberwell Grove Conservation Area, including harm to the views 
in and out of the conservation area; unacceptable scale and massing; and the CAC as 
there was no acceptable scheme either for replacement development or for suitable 
boundary treatments to replace the existing garages.  

There were earlier applications for full permission and CAC 08AP0474 (full planning) 

9



15

16

17

18

19

and 08AP0475 (conservation area consent) which were withdrawn 3/6/08.  The 
applications were for demolition of existing single storey garage and storage building 
facing onto Ivanhoe Rd, and erection of 1 x 4 bedroom, part one and part two storey 
single family dwelling house with two off street car parking spaces.  These 
applications were withdrawn in response to officer’s concerns regarding the impacts of 
the scheme on the character and appearance of the conservation area, harm to the 
amenities of adjoining occupiers, poor living conditions for its occupiers, and 
excessive car parking numbers. 

There was an earlier application, reference TP/2154/20/AD (Plans Register 1136/87B)
for the erection of two semi-detached houses on land at rear of 21 Grove Park –
refused 16/8/1988 for reasons of: 
1 - Loss of visual amenity to Ivanhoe Rd and Grove Park residents by reason of loss 
of trees and the open area at 21 Grove Park. 
2 - Loss of amenity to Ivanhoe Rd and Grove Park residents by reason of additional 
traffic and congestion 
3 – Scheme would adversely affect the character of the area (which is within the 
conservation area) due to the loss of trees and intrusion of the buildings into the open 
area at the rear of the Grove Park houses. 
4 – Loss of the private open space which is of benefit to the local community. 

The ensuing appeal was dismissed by decision dated 26/6/1989.  The Inspector held 
that the granting of planning permission in 1979 (set out below) was a material 
consideration.  However that permission was not implemented and had by then 
expired.   The Inspector found that the site is visually associated with the large 
gardens of the houses in this part of Grove Park which he considered part of the 
area’s character. Garages such as that on the appeal site are generally low and such 
buildings are often associated with large houses and are not intrinsically out of 
character, even if sometimes dilapidated through neglect. 

He found that the introduction of a 2/3 storey dwelling on an isolated plot, however 
well it might relate in style to the dwellings in Ivanhoe Rd, would in his view intrude 
into this space, would appear out of place, and would detract from the character of the 
conservation area. 

The Inspector held that the Council’s Committee Report on that 1979 approval had 
not considered the effects on the character and appearance of the conservation area 
apart from reference to views of the Conservation Advisory Committee.  In his view 
the adverse effects on conservation interests carried greater weight. Account was 
taken of the appeal decision at No. 20 which allowed development but the appeal at 
No. 21 was considered on its own merits.  The need to provide housing in London did 
not outweigh other considerations. 

TP/2154/20 (Statutory Register 10476) – Erection of two semi-detached houses on 
land at rear of 21 Grove Park – granted 6/3/1979 subject to conditions.  

20

21

Rear of 20 Grove Park
Full application LBS Reg. 02AP0796 and CAC 03AP1064 refused but allowed on 
appeal 12/5/04 for the construction of a two-storey three bedroom house, with the 
provision of a parking space and balcony to the front. The development would have 
replaced an existing garage and studio with the dimensions that are shown on the OS 
Map submitted with the current application (i.e. a ‘zig zag’ shaped pair of attached 
buildings with shallow pitched roofs.  The building envelope would have been similar 
to the garage/studio that was to be demolished. 

The Inspector’s decision alluded to the different siting and character of No. 21, which 
is more prominent from street and public views than No. 20, which in the view of the 

10



Inspector, would enable the Council to resist inappropriate development on other 
sites.

FACTORS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Main Issues 

22 The main issues in this case are: 

a]  The impact of the proposal on the visual amenity of the area, and the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

b]  The impact of the proposal on biodiversity.  

Planning Policy

23 Southwark Plan 2007 [July]
3.2 Protection of amenity 
3.13 Urban design 
3.18 Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and world heritage sites 
3.28 Biodiversity

Consultations

24

25

Site Notice: 3 September 2009    

Site Visit and Inspection by Arboricultural Officer: 3 September 2009 

26 Neighbour consultees
3 IVANHOE ROAD LONDON   SE5 8DH 
1 IVANHOE ROAD LONDON   SE5 8DH 
20 GROVE PARK LONDON   SE5 8LH 
1A IVANHOE ROAD LONDON   SE5 8DH 
FLAT 1 21 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
GARDEN FLAT 21 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
GROUND FLOOR FLAT 22 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
BASEMENT FLAT 21 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
BASEMENT FLAT 22 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
FIRST FLOOR FLAT 21 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
FIRST FLOOR FLAT 22 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
SECOND FLOOR FLAT 21 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
SECOND FLOOR FLAT 22 GROVE PARK LONDON  SE5 8LH 
9 IVANHOE ROAD LONDON   SE5 8DH 
1 Ivanhoe Road London   SE5 8DH 
6 Ivanhoe Road London   SE5 8DH 
8 IVANHOE ROAD LONDON   SE5 
11 BLENHEIM GROVE LONDON   SE15 
71 GROVE HILL LONDON   SE5 
4 Ivanhoe Road London   SE5 8DH 
5 Ivanhoe Road London   SE5 8DH  

27 Internal Advisors
Design and Conservation Team 
Arboricultural Team 

Consultation replies 

11



28

29

30

31

Neighbour consultees
Letters of objection were received as follows.  Any additional representations will be 
reported by way of an Addendum Report.: 

8 Ivanhoe Road: 
 Objection to the felling of trees 
 The Eucalyptus tree should be protected. 

9 Ivanhoe Road: 
 Enough trees have been removed from the area. 
 The replacement tree would take a long time to reach the same size as the 

Eucalyptus tree 

4 Ivanhoe Rd 
 Trees to the rear of 21 Grove Park have recently been felled, however a Tree 

Replacement Order have been served on this site. Whilst the tree replacement 
order will now take effect it will take many years before the new trees reach 
maturity. In the interim the trees at the rear of 21 & 22 Grove Park have assumed 
a greater significance than before. 

 That the applicant is not the owner of the land on which the tree is situated. 
 The Council should be sure that the Eucalyptus tree is the cause of the structural 

damage.
 That there should be conditions regulating the planting of the replacement tree 
 The objector refers to the Bay tree, which no longer for part of this application. 

A further letter from this address reiterates the original objections.  The main concern 
is that the grounds for requesting that the tree be felled are unsubstantiated, and 
furthermore that the replacement planting is not suitable, as set out below. 

Some while ago I wrote to the council to object to the application to fell a Eucalyptus 
tree and very seriously to reduce a Bay tree in part of the rear garden of 21 Grove 
Park. I live at number 4 Ivanhoe Road, immediately to the rear of 21 Grove Park and 
the land immediately to the south of that garden which has recently been the subject 
of an appeal successfully contested by the council. My understanding is that, for some 
reason, the element of the application relating to the bay tree has been withdrawn. 

I have now had the opportunity to read the report to the meeting of the Community 
Council on the 25th November regarding the application. The report refers to an 
objection by a resident whose address was not disclosed. It was my objection. I sent it 
by e-mail and, whilst disclosing my name, I Inadvertently neglected to enclose my 
address.

I re-iterate my objection and do so with emphasis. The felling of the substantial 
number of mature trees on the land to the rear of 21 Grove Park adjoining the cul-de-
sac of Ivanhoe Road is now well known to have been a particularly unfortunate 
episode and one that leaves consideration of any matter relating to trees in the area a 
very sensitive issue. Viewed from Ivanhoe Road the eucalyptus tree is of immense 
importance, since the trees to the rear of 21 Grove Park were felled the importance in 
conservation area terms of the trees in the rear gardens of numbers 20,21 & 22 Grove 
Park has acquired significantly greater importance than was already the case. I can 
see no reason at all for consent to be granted for the Eucalyptus tree to be felled 
unless a compelling argument has been advanced that that should be so.  

At every point in the report to the Community council the position is said to be 
inconclusive. The Eucalyptus tree is said to be possibly," a contributory factor", also it 
is said to be, “partially or wholly", responsible for subsidence. I have lived in Ivanhoe 
Road since 1983. I am well aware that the properties in this area were constructed on 

12



32

clay and that there is a history of subsidence in the area. That subsidence has arisen 
as a consequence of the sub-soil in the area, rather than root damage from trees. I do 
not have professional knowledge of these matters on a technical level. I have however 
long had cause to be interested and to inform myself as best I can because I have 
long owned a house in the area and it has implications for me in insurance terms. 
Whilst I have no direct knowledge my understanding is that the report recommending 
felling the eucalyptus tree was produced at the behest of an insurance company. The 
key point in the report to the community council is that it seems that there is 
subsidence at 21 Grove Park.  

There is no conclusive, and it seems no independent view as to whether or not there 
is subsidence and if there is, whether or not it has been caused by the Eucalyptus 
tree. The report constantly uses the word allegation. I therefore suggest that any 
decision cannot be made about the Eucalyptus tree unless there is a more substantial 
case and suggest that a decision is adjourned and that an independent report be 
commissioned.

In the event that the case against the Eucalyptus tree is proved I would also disagree 
with the proposed replacement as I do not feel that it suitable. 

Officer comments:
Officers consider that there is sufficient evidence from the applicant’s surveyors to 
indicate that the tree is having an impact on the house. 

The applicant has indicated that they are willing to carry out replacement planting on 
the site, and a condition is recommended in order to secure an appropriate species of 
tree, if consent is granted to fell the tree, as set out below.  

Condition
Prior to the felling of the Eucalyptus tree, details including location for planting, 
species and proposed size at planting of at least one indigenous tree to replace the 
Eucalyptus, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and the replacement planting approved shall thereafter be carried out in the 
first appropriate planting season following completion of the building works. 

Reason
To ensure that there is adequate replacement planting to mitigate the loss of the 
Eucalyptus tree and to preserve the character and appearance of the conservation 
area, in accordance with policies 3.2 Protection of amenity, 3.13 Urban design, 3.18 
Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and world heritage sites, 3.28 
Biodiversity of the Southwark Plan [July  2007].

A further letter of objection from an undisclosed address was received 17/12/09. 

This states that the writer understands that the recommendation is that there be a 
replanting condition and the species should be a cherry. The writer objects to this, 
stating that in PPG15 terms the Eucalyptus is very important, particularly when viewed 
from Ivanhoe Road. It is a substantial mature evergreen tree. In conservation area 
terms its loss would be significant. This is very much more the case since the 
substantial number of mature trees to the rear of 21 Grove Park were felled 
unlawfully. If the argument for felling is accepted and permission to fell is granted 
there must be effective and appropriate replanting. A cherry tree would take many 
years to grow to maturity, it would not be dense and, crucially, it is deciduous. Any  
tree planted must be evergreen, dense, semi mature and fast growing. Anything else 
would be totally unacceptable and would be detrimental to the character of the 
conservation area. The very mature sycamores  [located on the land at the rear of 21 
Grove Park) were deciduous but they were so dense and substantial that even in 

13



33

winter they screened and defined the boundary of the conservation area. The tree 
replanting on that site has not worked, will never address the damage caused and any 
benefit will take years to arise. On tree in place of a mature Eucalyptus will not 
redress the damage caused by it being felled, but it must meet the criteria I have 
identified above. 

The writer notes that if the application is granted it should be subject to a condition 
that the species be of a type and in a location acceptable to the owner in consultation 
with the local planning authority. Further there should be a condition that no work to 
the Eucalyptus can take place until a mode of replanting satisfying the first condition 
has been approved. 

Officer comments:   The applicant has indicated that they are willing to carry out 
replacement planting on the site, and a condition is recommended in order to secure 
an appropriate species of tree, if consent is granted to fell the tree, as set out in the 
recommendation on the agenda.  A cherry is not specifically specified. Officers have 
not suggested that the owner of the tree be a party to the discharge of the condition, 
because this would introduce uncertainty for the applicant in relation to satisfying the 
condition.  As a private matter however there would be nothing to prevent the 
applicant from agreeing the proposed replacement tree/s with the owner (if they are 
not themselves the owner) and submitting the details of any mutually agreed species 
of tree to the Council to satisfy the condition. The condition already states that the tree 
should not be felled until a suitable replacement has been agreed. 

Letters of support from: 
Ground floor, first floor and top floor of 22 Grove Park 
Ground floor and first floor of 21 Grove Park 
21C Grove Park 

Arboricultural considerations

34
Assessment of submitted arboricultural report
None submitted.

35

36

Assessment of damage to property
Subsidence damage is claimed as justification for the works.  A site investigation 
report and a report from GAB Robins were submitted to support the claim.   

The technical report states that: 

"The trial excavation revealed the rear wall to be found 260mm below ground level in 
shrinkable clay subsoils containing tree roots. The moisture contents of the clay 
samples indicate moisture deficiencies, and analysis of the root samples taken from 
the trial hole indicate to be originating from the Eucalyptus tree sited in the rear 
garden."

"Based on the investigation findings the cause of the damage/movement is in our 
opinion due to clay shrinkage subsidence aggravated by root action from the 
Eucalyptus tree."

37
Tree evaluation assessment for making Tree Preservation Order
The trees form a valuable screen between Grove Park and Ivanhoe Road.  The 
Eucalyptus tree has been identified as a contributory factor in alleged subsidence to 
21 Grove Park.  The evidence suggests that the tree is partially or wholly responsible.
The Eucalyptus tree is not considered to be an excellent specimen and its 
replacement with an indigenous species would help in restoring the tree population on 
Grove Park.  The Eucalyptus tree is suppressed by the Bay tree and it comes across 

14



38

as lacking in branches and not well proportioned.  An indigenous wild cherry tree 
(Prunus avium) could be replanted to fill the gap that this tree would leave once 
removed and would provide better habitat and food for wild birds 

The Council's Tree Officer commented in relation to the original application for works 
to the Bay Tree that these works would include drastic pruning that is not 
recommended.  The Bay tree needs pruning but not to the extent applied for. It was 
recommended that the applicant be advised that the Tree Officer would be agreeable 
to crown shaping, crown lifting and crown thinning. The originally proposed works 
were subsequently omitted from this application.  

39
Impact on biodiversity
Replacing the Eucalyptus tree with indigenous species will be positive for surrounding 
wildlife and provide suitable habitat for roosting birds.  

40
Impact on character and setting of the conservation area 
The tree is mature, healthy and located in a prominent position and thus makes a 
positive contribution to the character of the conservation area. Nevertheless, the 
impact of the Eucalyptus tree upon subsidence of the house as such that its removal 
is considered to be justified. The proposed replacement tree would ensure that the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area would be preserved.    

41
Other matters 
The applicant deleted the works originally proposed in this application to the Bay tree.

42

43

Conclusion
The Eucalyptus tree has been identified as a contributory factor in alleged subsidence 
to 21 Grove Park.  The evidence suggests that the tree is partially or wholly 
responsible.  The Eucalyptus tree is not considererd to be an excellent specimen and 
its replacement with an indigenous species would help in restoring the tree population 
on Grove Park.  The Eucalyptus tree is suppressed by the Bay tree and it comes 
across as lacking in branches and not well proportioned.  An indigenous wild cherry 
tree (Prunus avium) could be replanted to fill the gap that this tree would leave once 
removed, and provide good habitat and food for wild birds. 

It is therefore recommended that approval be granted for the felling of the Eucalyptus 
tree.

COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 

44 In line with the Council's Community Impact Statement the impact of this application 
has been assessed as part of the application process with regard to local people in 
respect of their age, disability, faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual 
orientation. Consultation with the community has been undertaken as part of the 
application process. 

45 a]    The impact on local people is set out above. 

46
HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
This planning application engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 
2008 (the HRA).  The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ‘engage’ simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant.  This application has the legitimate aim of felling the Eucalyptus 
tree and replacing the tree with more acceptable specie.  The rights potentially 
engaged by this application, including a right to a fair trial and the right to respect for 
private and family life are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this 
proposal.

15



LEAD OFFICER Gary Rice Head of Development Management
REPORT AUTHOR 
Planning Officer Neil Loubser Tel: 020 7525 5451
REPORT AUTHOR 
Arboricultural officer Ernst Erasmus Tel: 0207 525 5000 
CASE FILE TP/2154-20 Application number 09-AP-1698
Papers held at: Regeneration and neighbourhoods dept.,  

Development management 
160 Tooley Street 
PO Box SE1P 5LX 
tel.: 020 7525 5403 email: planning.enquiries@southwark.gov.uk 

16



RECOMMENDATION

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below. 
This document is not a decision notice for this application. 

Applicant Mr T. Williams Reg. Number 09-AP-1698 
Application Type Tree Preservation Order - works related 
Recommendation Grant TPO consent Case 

Number
TP/2154-20

Draft of Decision Notice

Tree Preservation Order consent was GIVEN to carry out the following works:
 Felling of Eucalyptus in rear garden and replacement with indigenous species. 

At: 21 GROVE PARK, LONDON, SE5 8LH 

In accordance with application received on 30/07/2009     

and Applicant's Drawing Nos. Site Investigation Report dated 19/12/2008 
Letter dated 13/2/09 from GAB Robins Co Uk 
E-mail dated 12/10/09 from BDP 
Letters dated 23/7/09 and 23/8/2009 from Grove Park Management Ltd 

Subject to the following condition:
1 Prior to the felling of the Eucalyptus tree, details including location for planting, species and proposed size at 

planting of at least one indigenous tree to replace the Eucalyptus, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the replacement planting approved shall thereafter be carried out 
in the first appropriate planting season following completion of the building works. 

Reason 
To ensure that there is adequate replacement planting to mitigate the loss of the Eucalyptus tree and to 
preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area, in accordance with policies 3.2 Protection of 
amenity, 3.13 Urban design, 3.18 Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and world heritage sites, 3.28 
Biodiversity of the Southwark Plan [July  2007].  

Reasons for granting planning permission.

This planning application was considered with regard to various policies including, but not exclusively: 

a] Policies 3.2 Protection of amenity, 3.13 Urban design, 3.18 Setting of listed buildings, conservation 
areas and world heritage sites, 3.28 Biodiversity of the Southwark Plan [July  2007].  

Particular regard was had to the impacts on visual amenity that would result from the proposed felling but it 
was considered that the character and appearance of the conservation area would be preserved by the 
proposed replacement planting of an indigenous species which is proposed to mitigate the loss of the 
Eucalyptus tree. It was therefore considered appropriate to grant permission for the felling of the tree having 
regard to the policies considered and other material planning considerations. 

17



S
ca

le
 1

/1
25

0

D
at

e 
9/

9/
20

09

31
6 

-3
22

 C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

L
L

 N
E

W
 R

O
A

D
, L

O
N

D
O

N
, S

E
5

A
D

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
na

ry
 O

ffi
ce

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. U

na
ut

ho
ris

ed
 r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n 

in
fr

in
ge

s 
C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

18



Item

2

Classification

OPEN

Decision Level

CAMBERWELL 
COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Date

January 13 2010 

From

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

Title of Report

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Proposal   (09-AP-2500)

Variation of Condition 17 on approved application 
09-AP-0717 dated 29/10/2009 (for a five storey 
building comprising an A1 retail unit and 37 
residential flats), in which Condition 17 restricted the 
hours of operation of the approved retail unit at 
Ground Floor level to "08:00 to 23:00 on Monday to 
Saturday or 11:00 to 22:00 on other Sundays and 
Bank Holidays" to now read: "The use hereby 
permitted to the ground floor for retail purposes 
(Class A1) shall not be carried on outside the hours 
of 07:00 - 23:00 Mondays to Saturdays, and 08:00-
22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays". 

Address

316-322 CAMBERWELL NEW 
ROAD, LONDON SE5 

Ward Camberwell Green

Application Start Date 10/11/2009 Application Expiry Date  09/02/10

PURPOSE 

1 To consider the case at Camberwell Community Council due to the nature of the 
proposal and as the scheme which is the subject of the variation to condition was 
considered very recently by Camberwell Community Council, on 23/09/09.  

RECOMMENDATION 

2

3

1. Subject to the applicant (or their successors in title) first entering into an 
appropriate legal agreement (S106 Deed of Variation) (at no cost to the Council) 
by no later than 6/2/2010 planning permission be granted . 

2. In the event that the requirements of Recommendation 1 are not met by 
6/2/2010, the Head of Development Management be authorised to refuse 
planning permission for the reasons set out under paragraph 80.

 BACKGROUND 

Site location and description
4

5

The site is currently used as a turning area for the Camberwell bus station.  To the 
east of the site is the Camberwell bus garage, and to the west are 3 storey residential 
terraces.  To the rear there is a site under construction for alterations to the 
Camberwell bus garage, detailed in the history section below.  

The site is located within the Urban Density Zone, Archaeological Priority Zone, Air 
Quality Management Area, and has a Public Transport Accessibility level of 4.1.  The 
site is not within a conservation area, neither are there any listed buildings in or 
around the site.  The site lies to the west of the Camberwell Town Centre boundary 

19



and directly opposite the Camberwell Grove Conservation Area boundary.  It is within 
the Camberwell Controlled Parking Zone.  The site is not located within a Flood Risk 
Zone.

Details of proposal
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

The proposal is for the amendment of a condition attached to a previous approval.  
The condition required the following; 

The use hereby permitted to the ground floor, for retail purposes (Use class A1) shall not 
be carried on outside of the hours 08:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Saturday or 11:00 to 
22:00 on other Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

Reason 
In order to ensure there is no loss of amenity to the surrounding and on-site residents, 
caused by activity late at night associated with the retail unit hereby approved, in 
accordance with policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

The applicant now wishes to alter the wording of the condition to allow longer opening 
hours which would fit more with the type of retail use proposed (which is anticipated to 
be a Tesco Metro.) 

The applicant has proposed the following wording; 
The use hereby permitted to the ground floor, for retail purposes (Use class A1) shall not 

be carried on outside of the hours 07:00 to 23:00 Daily. 

On officer advice, in order to address concerns regarding the effects of the variation in 
opening hours on the amenities of future and surrounding occupiers, the applicant 
agreed to amend this to read as follows; 

The use hereby permitted to the ground floor, for retail purposes (Use class A1) shall not 
be carried on outside of the hours 07:00 - 23:00 Monday to Saturday, and 08:00 to 22:00 
on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

The scheme that is the subject of this application to vary a condition was granted 
permission at Camberwell Community Council on 23rd September 2009, and the 
associated legal agreement was signed on 29th October 2009.  The scheme granted 
is for the construction of a 4 storey building plus set back mansard floor, to contain 1 
retail unit (450sqm) on the ground floor and 37 flats on the upper floors (5 floors in 
total).  For completeness, and to understand the effect of the variation in the context 
of the scheme overall, and as the effect of an application to vary a condition is a new 
planning permission, the proposal is set out below. 

The housing tenure would be as follows; 
12 of the 37 units would be affordable. (32% of total number, or 35% by habitable 
rooms).  Of these, 100% would be social rented. (None would be shared ownership.) 

On the ground floor, the retail unit would occupy the full frontage, with the two x three 
bedroomed wheelchair units positioned to the rear.  There are 3 stair cores (A, B and 
C).  The two wheelchair units would be accessed from stair core C through a corridor 
leading towards the rear.  Most of the affordable units would be arranged around stair 
core A.  Residential cycle and refuse stores are positioned adjacent to Core A and 
Core C.  There is an undercroft towards the western edge of the site for 2 disabled 
parking bays, and 30 spaces, two tier cycle storage.  A further 18 cycle spaces are 
arranged around stair core A. 

The layout would comprise the following; 
2 x 3 bed wheelchair accessible flats to ground floor. 
2 x 3 bed units on the first floor 
2 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed on the second floor,  

20



14

15

16

17

18

19

2 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed on the third floor. 
2 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed on the fourth floor. 
This equates to 42 Affordable Habitable Rooms. 
There are 123 Habitable rooms in the development.  This equals 35% Affordable 
Housing provision. 

In terms of sustainability, the scheme proposes solar water heating, photovoltaics, 
exhaust air heat pumps, recycling of grey water and rainwater, recycling, composting 
and residual waste disposal. 

The scheme has been amended slightly during the application process, to increase 
the size of the wheelchair units (from originally proposed 2 x 2 bed and 1 x 3 beds on 
the ground floor, to 2 x 3 beds.)  This was to allow more amenity space, explored in 
the considerations section below.  The overall height of the building has been reduced 
in line with the dormers to the roof, and the ground floor fascia height has been 
increased to make more of the active frontage. 
There have also been alterations in the negotiated s.106 contribution, this has 
increased from £75,000 as negotiated at pre-application stage, to £170,000.   

Revised drawings have been provided by the applicant which now show the extent of 
the context of the proposal in relation to the as yet unconstructed new bus station to 
the rear. 

The design of the building would be predominantly stock brick, the stair cores would 
be faced in re-constituted stone.  The facade treatment is fairly simple, with recessed 
windows, full glazed ground floor, and a simple, slightly stepped brick pattern to the 
Camberwell New Road facade.  

The proposal also includes a lay-by off Camberwell New Road, for servicing 
purposes.  This would measure 22m in width on the roadside, and 2.2m in depth. 

An Energy Assessment  and Sustainability Statement (including Code for Sustainable 
Homes pre-assessment) has been submitted, confirming that the development meets 
CSH 3.  A BREEAM Retail assessment estimate has also been submitted, confirming 
a Very Good rating). 

Planning history
20 09-AP-0717: Planning permission for a 4 storey building plus set back mansard floor, 

to contain 1 retail unit (450sqm) on the ground floor and 37 flats on the upper floors (5 
floors in total) was granted, with legal agreement on 29/10/09. 

Planning history of adjoining sites
21

22

Camberwell Bus Station 
05-AP-0421: Planning permission was granted on appeal on 15/02/08 for demolition 
of existing workshop, construction of new workshop extension to main depot, creation 
of new parking area, on site of demolished building on site at 2 Warner Road.  This 
development is underway. 

08-AP-2682: Planning permission was granted on 19/01/09 for the retention of 
emergency vehicle entrance onto Warner Road, and installation of a palisade gate 
08-AP-2683: Planning permission was granted on 19/05/09 for the relocation of 
substation to south west corner of site. 

FACTORS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Main Issues 

21



23 The main issues in this case in relation to the scheme overall, are as follows: 

a]   the principle of the development in terms of land use and conformity with strategic 
policies. 

b] Mix, Density and Layout; 

c] Affordable Housing Provision; 

d] Design in the context of the streetscene, and on the setting of the Camberwell 
Green Conservation Area to the north of the site; 

e] Transport Issues; 

f] Impact on Amenity of Neighbouring Residents and Occupiers; 

g] Planning Obligations. 

h] Sustainability 

g] In relation to the application to vary the condition on opening hours of the approved 
ground floor retail unit, the main issue is the acceptability of the amended condition, 
and the impact of the increased opening hours on the amenity of the existing 
residents nearby the site, as well as the future residents of the site, and users of the 
area.

Planning Policy

24 Southwark Plan 2007 [July]
SP5 Regeneration and employment opportunities 
SP6 Accessible services 
SP 9 Meeting community needs 
SP15 Open space and biodiversity 
SP17 Housing; SP18 Sustainable transport

1.1 Access to employment opportunities 
1.8 Location of developments for retail and other town centre uses. 
2.1 Enhancement of community facilities 
2.2 Provision of new community facilities 
2.3 Enhancement of education facilities 
2.4 Educational deficiencies 
2.5 Planning Obligations 
3.1 Environmental Effects 
3.2 Protection of Amenity 
3.3 Sustainability Assessment 
3.4 Energy Efficiency 
3.5 Renewable Energy 
3.6 Air Quality 
3.7 Waste Reduction 
3.9 Water 
3.11 Efficient Use of Land 
3.12 – Quality in Design 
3.13 – Urban Design 
3.14 – Designing Out Crime 
3.18 - 3.18 Setting of Listed Buildings, conservation areas and World Heritage Sites.  

22



3.19 – Archaeology 
4.1 Density of Residential Development 
4.2 Quality of Residential Development 
4.3 Mix of Dwellings 
4.4 Affordable Housing 
4.5 Wheelchair Affordable Housing 
5.2 Transport Impacts 
5.3 Walking and Cycling 
5.4 Public transport improvements 
5.5 Transport development areas
5.6 Car Parking 
5.7 – Parking Standards for Disabled People and the Mobility Impaired 

SPD/SPG
Residential Design Standards SPD 2008 
S106 Planning Obligations SPD 2007 
Sustainable Transport SPD 2008 
Affordable Housing SPD 2008
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 2009 

25 London Plan 2004
2A.1 Sustainability criteria 
3A.1 Increasing London's supply of housing
3A.3 Maximising the potential of sites
3A.6 Quality of new housing provision
3A.9 Affordable housing targets
3A.10 Negotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and mixed use 
schemes
3A.18 Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure and Community Facilities 
3A.24 Education facilities 
3C.3 Sustainable transport in London 
3C.17 Tackling congestion and reducing traffic 
 3C.18 Allocation of street space 
3C.21 Improving Conditions for Walking  
3C.22 Improving Conditions for Cycling 
3C.23 Parking Strategy 
3D.8 Realising the Value of Open Space
3D.14 Biodiversity and nature conservation 
3D.11 Open space provision in UDPs
4A.3 Sustainable design and construction
4A.4 Energy Assessment
4A.7 Renewable Energy
4A.14 Sustainable drainage
4A.17 Water quality
4A.18 Water and sewage infrastructure
4A.19 Improving air quality
4B.1 Design principles for a compact city
4B.2 Promoting world class architecture and design 
4B.3 Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment
4B.8 Respect local context and communities
4B.14 Archaeology
6A.4 Priorities in planning obligations 

26 Planning Policy Guidance [PPG] and Planning Policy Statements [PPS]
PPS 1: Planning for Sustainable Communities 
PPS 3: Housing 

23



PPG 13: Transport 
PPG 15: Planning and the Historic Environment 
PPG16: Archaeology and Planning 
PPG23: Pollution Control 
PPG24: Noise 

Consultations

27

28

29

Site notice date: 19/11/09  Press notice date:19/11/09 

Neighbour consultation letters sent: 23/11/09 

Case officer site visit date: 19/11/09 

30

31

Internal consultees
Environmental Protection 

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
N/A

32

33

Neighbour consultees
A number of neighbouring residents and businesses were consulted.  Please see 
attached list. 

Re-consultation
N/A

Consultation replies 

34

35

Internal consultees
Environmental Protection Team: No Objections 

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
N/A

36

37

Neighbour consultees
No responses. 

Re-consultation
N/A

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

38

39

40

Principle of development 
Section 73 Applications
Section 73 of the Planning Act 1990 allows for an application to be made for planning 
permission for development without complying with conditions subject to which 
planning permission was granted.  

For such applications, the local planning authority can only consider the question of 
the conditions subject to which planning permission should be granted. That is, 
whether permission should be granted with the revised conditions, unconditionally or 
with the same conditions as before (in which case this application would be refused). 

An application under Section 73 is, in effect, a power to discharge or amend planning

24



41

42

43

44

45

conditions. But its actual legal effect is somewhat different. The outcome of a 
successful application is a wholly new planning permission, which the applicant is 
entitled to implement or ignore. The original permission remains in place and can still 
be implemented.

The section makes it clear that in considering such an application, a local authority 
may only consider the question of the conditions.  An applications should be treated 
just like any other application, and due regard paid to the development plan and other 
material considerations.  However it is possible to deduce that a permission with 
modified or removed conditions is not legally a new permission and thus any 
agreements or other restrictions related to the original grant of planning permission 
are still valid.

Land Use
The site lies outside of the Town Centre boundary.  Policy 1.8 states that outside town 
and local centres, applications for retail, leisure, entertainment or other town centre 
uses, will only be permitted if that the following criteria are met; 
i) A need for the development can be demonstrated, and, 
ii) There are no suitable sites in the town and local centres, in which case preference 
shall be given to edge-of-centre sites with good pedestrian access to the town and 
local centres, and then out-of-centre sites close to or potentially linked to the town or 
local centre; and 
iii) The vitality and viability of town and local centres will not be harmed; and 
iv) the applicants can demonstrate that they have been flexible about the format 
scale, design and parking provision in the sequential search for sites; and 
v) the proposal will be accessible by a choice of means of transport.

Pre-application discussions accepted the retail use outside the Town Centre 
boundary.  The reasoning is that the site is close enough to the Town Centre 
boundary that the location of the proposed retail unit would not significantly detract 
from the vitality or viability of the nearby town centre.  There is an identified need for 
housing in the borough, and the vacant bus garage site is an ideal site in terms of its 
size and location, to accommodate the development.  There are good public transport 
links along Camberwell New Road, and the site lies within a Public Transport 
Accessibility level of 4.1, which indicates good accessibility. As set out below, the 
residential use is considered to be acceptable having had regard to material planning 
policies and supplementary planning guidance on the quality if the accommodation, 
subject to conditions of consent. For these reasons, the proposed mix of uses is 
considered to be acceptable. 

Density.
The scheme has a density of 892HR/Ha.  This is higher than the range set out for the 
Urban Zone under policy 4.1 (Density), which is 200 - 700 HR/ha.  However, the 
appendix to policy 4.1 Density does provide that the design and scale of the 
development within this zone should respond positively to the design and scale of the 
development should respond positively to the local context.  Appropriate density 
ranges are related to location, setting in terms of existing building form and massing, 
and the index of public transport accessibility.   

The density is considered appropriate given the site's location, the building form and 
massing are acceptable having had regard to the setting of the site and the scale and 
massing of surrounding development, and having regard to the index of public 
transport accessibility.  It is considered that the scheme displays a good quality of 
design, and all the units would have access to private outdoor amenity space, with 
larger, wheelchair accessible units on the ground floor. The scheme would make 
appropriate provision for the mitigation of its impacts in relation to infrastructure, as 
set out ion the S106 planning obligations section below. 

25



46

47

48

49

50

For these reasons, although the proposed density exceeds the range normally 
expected for this area, the scheme would be appropriate in its context and would not 
result in an over-large development in its context, nor a cramped or otherwise 
unacceptable form of urban residential development. 

Affordable Housing.
The developer has agreed to provide for 35% affordable housing by habitable rooms, 
of which 100% is proposed as Social Rented.  This policy also requires the affordable 
housing split developments in the Urban Density Zone to be 70:30 (social 
rented:intermediate).  Whilst the proposed 35% is in line with Policy 4.4 on Affordable 
housing, the tenure split is not as it makes no provision for intermediate housing. 

The developer submitted an Economic Viability report on 20/08/09.  This concluded 
that, based on the assumptions in the Toolkit model, the residual value that emerges
from the appraisal shows a substantial deficit on the site's acquisition price.  This 
report was assessed by the Council's valuer, and he concurred with the calculations 
given.  The provision of 100% social rented has been qualified by lengthy negotiations 
on the site, both at pre-application stage, and during the assessment of the 
application.  The Financial appraisal submitted sets out that the scheme would not be 
viable if intermediate housing were to be provided. 

Because the financial appraisal concluded that there would be a viability problem with 
delivering the scheme even if intermediate housing is excluded from the mix, a grant 
is also being applied for from the HCA, with the support of Officers, for the affordable 
units, taking into account also that the applicant's housing specification is compliant 
with HCA standards. 

It is therefore considered that the provision of the required amount of affordable 
housing, albeit not with the preferred tenure split, is acceptable in this case, taking 
into account evidence that has been submitted by the applicant in relation to the 
viability of the scheme, and considering the other benefits brought about by the 
scheme, in particular s.106 planning obligations that would be secured, sustainable 
form of construction, and good quality design and accommodation, as explored in the 
sections below. 

51
Environmental impact assessment 
N/A

52

53

54

Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
surrounding area (in particular having regard to the effect of varying the hours 
as applied for under this application) 
It is not considered that the amended hours would impact negatively upon the 
surrounding residents or users of the area.  The extra hour in the morning (amended 
from 8am to 7am Monday to Saturday) is not likely to result in disturbance over and 
above that already experienced on the busy Red Route at this time of day.  The
applicant's Service Management Plan confirms that servicing would not take place 
before 7am, and the Red Route restrictions would also prevent this. 

During the course of the application, the hours were amended from the initial hours 
proposed by the applicant.  It was considered that on Sundays and Bank Holidays the 
additional hours would be onerous and that a slightly later opening time and slightly 
earlier closing time than the applicant applied for would be more appropriate on these 
days.  Sundays and Bank Holidays are typically times when people tend to participate 
in less activity than Saturdays and during the week.   

It was considered that to relax the opening hours to be the same as those required 

26



55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

during the week and on Saturdays, could result in activity occurring earlier on Sunday 
and Bank Holiday mornings and later on these nights, than other activity in the area. 
In particular, in view of the fact that the residents on the upper floors of the scheme do 
not yet inhabit the scheme, and cannot therefore make representations, as the 
scheme is unimplemented, and as there therefore a duty to be particularly mindful of 
the impacts on future occupiers, in considering any relaxation of the opening hours. 

It is considered that the hours as 07:00 - 23:00 Monday to Saturday, and 08:00 to 
22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays, are appropriate, and would protect the 
amenities of the surrounding and future residents of the site, in accordance with policy 
3.2 Protection of Amenity.

Future occupants of site

Mix of Dwellings
The total dwelling mix within the scheme is as follows; 
1 bed flats: 7 
2 bed flats: 26 
3 bed flats: 4 
Total: 37 

The mix of dwellings meets with policy 4.3, as the majority of the units have 2 or more 
bedrooms, and 10% of the units have 3 bedrooms, with access to private outdoor 
space.

The amendments to the scheme to increase the size of the wheelchair units were 
requested, as the Borough needs more large sized wheelchair accessible units.  It 
was considered that the 2 x 3 bedroom units with more generously sized amenity 
space than had been originally proposed with three smaller flats, and therefore 
although the scheme would not deliver 10% wheelchair housing the provision of  5% 
of the units are wheelchair accessible, on balance is acceptable. 

With the exception of the ground floor wheelchair units, all of the units in the scheme 
have a dual aspect.  The units meet the Councils minimum room size standards as 
set out in the Residential Design Guidelines SPD. 

Wheelchair accessible units
The amenity space and outlook are now considered acceptable and would ensure as 
good a quality living environment as the site would allow given the constraints of its 
location and the nature of the surrounding developments. 

Amenity space, Outlook, Sunlight and Daylight.
All of the flats benefit from rear balconies.  The flats on the ground floor have rear 
gardens facing south, and those on the first floor have decked patio areas, which are 
positioned on the roof of the ground floor units.  This is facilitated by the stepped rear 
elevation.  The applicant's sunlight and daylight report concludes that all habitable 
rooms receive adequate daylight and sunlight, having been subject to the Daylight 
distribution test, and the Average Daylight Factor tests.  

Proximity of new development to the rear (South) - Camberwell Bus garage 
extension.
The objection from the Go-Ahead group refers to potential ongoing amenity issues 
with the impact of the 9.3m ridge height of the new bus shed extension to the south. 
This extension would be the same height as the existing bus garage to the east.  This 
would be 1.5m off the southern boundary of the site.  In order to address this issue, 
the developer was requested to bring back the elevation, and thus reduce the number 
of ground floor units.  This has resulted in maximising the amenity space to the rear, 

27



63

and provided a larger separation distance between the units and the new bus garage. 
This situation is acceptable and in the urban location and for the site's layout is 
considered to be the best possible solution.  

In terms of the impact upon 314 Camberwell New Road, the current boundary wall is 
approximately 2m in height.  This wall intercepts a 45° line taken from the centre of 
the ground floor windows at 314.  The proposed development would measure 3.6m in 
height and would project 9m from the rear building line of 314, to the same footprint 
as that of the current boundary wall.  This is not considered to detrimentally impact 
upon the daylight received by the ground floor windows of 314, which would appear to 
be kitchen doors and not habitable rooms (these appear to be arranged on the upper 
floors).

64

Impact of adjoining and nearby uses on occupiers and users of proposed 
development
The extension to the bus garage on the adjacent site to the south has been looked at 
in relation to the proposal.  The extension would be splayed at 4m from the boundary 
wall of the site, at a similar height to that of the current bus garage (approximately 9m 
in height).  The ground floor units have been brought back away from the bulk of the 
bus garage as much as possible.  This has resulted in a reduction in the number of 
wheelchair units, from 2 x 2 bed units and 1 x 3 bed, to 2 x 3 bed units.  This allows 
for more generously sized gardens, with a better outlook.  The situation is the best 
that can be accommodated within the site, and the presence of the new bus garage is 
not considered to detrimentally impact upon the quality of amenity space enjoyed by 
the ground floor wheelchair units. 

65

66

67

68

Traffic issues 
Parking
There are two wheelchair parking spaces within the site, in an undercroft area. This 
provision is acceptable taking into account the needs of the wheelchair accessible 
flats. Initial concern about the manoeuvring area has been addressed and there is 
now the required 6m manoeuvring space. 

Aside from these spaces, the scheme would be car free.  It is recommended that 
taking into account the high public transport accessibility level and to encourage more 
sustainable transport choices, and to prevent harm arising by reason of additional 
parking burden within the surrounding area, the occupants of the scheme should be 
made exempt from applying for car parking permits in the surrounding CPZ. This can 
be secured by way of a planning obligation to amend the transport management 
order.  The applicant submitted an initial proposed green travel plan and a further full 
travel plan and on going compliance with this should also be secured through the 
S106.

TfL have no objections to the siting of a servicing lay-by on Camberwell New Road, 
and have requested a contribution through the S106 towards a review of the 
crossings in the area. A service management plan, including proposed hours of use of 
the loading bay (suggested as loading between 0700 - 1900 Mon - Sat only with 
maximum stay of 1 hour), was submitted.  Compliance with this plan should be 
secured by way of a condition to ensure that the transport impacts of the scheme in 
relation to servicing and deliveries and adequately managed. 

Cycle Parking
There is adequate cycle parking for the scheme in compliance with the Council's 
standards on cycle parking, which does not as initially appeared encroach on the 
disabled parking area, as follows:  
Residential - 30 spaces within an undercroft to the western edge of the site, two-tier. 
a further 18 two-tier spaces adjacent to core A and the residential bin store. 

28



69

70

Public cycle parking is to be provided on the Camberwell New Road footway (9 
Sheffield racks in Stainless Steel, to be able to park 18 cycles.) 

Servicing and refuse storage
Adequate provision has been made on site for the storage of refuse and recycling for 
the retail and residential units, and for servicing by way of a loading bay at the front of 
the site.

The scheme is considered to be in accordance with policy 5.2 Transport Impacts, 3.7 
waste reduction, and 5.3 Walking and Cycling. 

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

Design issues 
The height, scale and massing of this proposal has been generally agreed through the 
extensive pre-application negotiations which preceded this application. The fourth 
storey and attic relate well to the garage building to the South East and to the block at 
No.296a Camberwell Road on the block opposite corner of the block.   Whilst the 
relationship to the lower terrace at No.s 298-314 adjacent are considered to be less 
successful, when viewed in the wider context it would fit in well. The massing of the 
block (and the roof) has been modulated into four horizontal sections, with gradual 
stepping-out that links the frontage of the bus station building to that of the existing 
terrace.  The four stepped-sections are further expressed by the three projecting bays
which signal the residential entrances, which are also in a different colour of brick. 
The two central sections are dominated by shop-fronts, which would provide active 
frontage to Camberwell New Road; the two outer-sections are less successfully 
dominated by service-doors and car-park entrance gates, the detailed designs for 
which should be required by a condition to ensure they make a positive contribution to 
the public realm. 

The shopfronts themselves have been increased in height during the application 
process to emphasise the proportions of the ground-level and give more strength to 
their proportions.  The fenestration above is generally set in deep reveals, which gives 
visual depth to the elevations, with a decreasing height of opening as the floors rise, 
giving a balanced proportionality to the facade treatment. 

The existing urban grain of Camberwell New Road is predominantly one of consistent 
terraces with strong character, set-back behind gardens (to the west); this proposal 
fits in with this well.  

The existing townscape character is very varied at the eastern end of Camberwell 
New Road, as opposed to the Georgian and late Victorian terraces that develop 
westwards. Within this context the contemporary ‘terrace-block’ with active 
commercial frontages would sit well, and effectively repair a large gap in the 
townscape frontage. 

The site layout is restricted to forming a terrace on the established building-line, with 
all servicing and access off Camberwell New Road.   

The quality of the streetscape planting, materials and furniture is vital considering the 
sensitivity of this site in the setting, and the existing somewhat hostile nature of 
Camberwell New Road; these items should be controlled by a condition for approval. 

In terms of landscaping, this proposal is providing 3 new trees on the pavement. 
These will be secured through s.106.  The narrowest point between the trees, cycle 
stands and loading bay, and the shopfront fascia is 2m.  This is in line with the 
minimum required circulation width for pavements, as set out in the Department for 
Transport Manual for Streets. 

29



78

79

80

81

82

83

In terms of inclusive design this proposal provides two 3-bed wheelchair units at 
ground-level, with parking spaces and ample sized private gardens. 

The rear elevation is largely glazed and dominated by balconies, which makes 
maximum use of the much quieter southerly aspect. 

In terms of materials, the predominantly brick facade relates the scheme well to its 
context, although officers consider that this should be a brick with some variety of 
colour and texture to enliven the lengthy elevation. The Poly-Powder Coated (PPC) 
aluminium doors and windows are acceptable, but officers would request that the zinc 
standing-seam roof is created in a modest width of sheet/centering-of-seams to give 
more rhythm and interest to the roof-scape.  These details could be secured by 
conditions.

Internally the significant majority of units are dual-aspect, although A-03/A-06/A-09 
are single-aspect onto Camberwell New Road (albeit with a small rear light-well) 
which unfortunate, but the shape of the site constrains the layout here. The two 
ground-level wheelchair units at the rear have been increased in size, with bigger 
gardens.  Whilst the outlook remains limited from these flats, it is considered that the 
final proposed layout is optimum and the best possible for this constrained part of the 
site.

Materials would include brick and re-constituted stone to the facade, timber framing 
for the balconies and terraces to the rear, and PPC (Poly Powder Coated metal) 
window frames.  In terms of the details of the bricks, these will be required as a 
condition.  However, it would be desirable if the bricks displayed a slight variance in 
tone or grain, to each of the 4 modulated sections within the facade.  The applicant 
has been advised of this and has agreed to submit the details of the bricks to accord 
as far as possible and be approved in writing. 

With conditions requiring the submission of details of the service doors, samples of 
the reconstituted stone and brickwork, and hard landscaping, and provision of trees 
as shown on the plans, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with policy 
3.12 Quality in Design. 

84
Impact on character and setting of a listed building and/or conservation area 
No listed buildings or conservation areas would be adversely affected by this 
development.

85
Impact on trees 
The application proposes three new trees to the front footway along Camberwell new 
Road.  This should be secured through the s.106 as works will need to be carried out 
by the Council at the applicant's expense.  A further three trees are proposed to the 
rear of the site within the rear gardens. A condition is recommended to require the 
proposed trees within the site to be planted following completion of the scheme, and 
to be maintained thereafter.

86

87

88

Planning obligations [S.106 undertaking or agreement] 
If consent is granted for the variation to the hours of operation, the agreed s.106 
agreement would need to be amended by way of a Deed of variation, to ensure that 
the new permission which would also be subject to the agreed planning obligations. 
The Council's legal Services team have been instructed on this matter.   

For completeness, the agreed S106 Heads of terms are set out below. 

Planning obligations are intended to offset the negative impacts of a development. As 
outlined within the Affordable Housing section of this report, a full financial viability 

30



89

90

91

92

93

94

95

appraisal was submitted to assess the capability of the scheme to comply with s106 
planning obligation requirements.  The primary S106 objective for this site when the 
first application was discussed as part of a pre-application enquiry in August 2008 and 
at the time, a figure of £75,000 was agreed, along with an Affordable Housing 
contribution of 35% Habitable Rooms.  Due to changes in the market, the level of 
s.106 contributions required in the Camberwell Area, and following the provision by 
the developer of the Financial Appraisal, the figure has been negotiated upwards to 
£170,000 with an affordable Housing provision of 35% Habitable rooms (100% Social 
Rented) - as set out in the Affordable Housing section above. 

The toolkit would require a contribution of £187,355. Due to the fact that the applicant 
submitted the financial appraisal, it has not been possible for the full s.106 amount to 
be achieved.  Given that additional s.106 has been negotiated upwards, with no 
commensurate fall in affordable housing here, officers consider that this is an 
acceptable offer, given the clear viability issues at this site and in the current market. 

Agreed Heads of Terms are as follows; 
Education     £ 14,578 
Employment During construction              £ 22,080 
Employment During Construction (Mgt fee)   £1,790 
Public Open Space    £ 9,392 
Children's play equipment   £ 4,551 
Sports Development    £ 22,919 (towards Camberwell Leisure      
Centre)
Transport - Strategic    £ 14,719 
Transport - Site Specific   £ 19,496 (£2,750 of this figure is to be 
put                                                                                        towards a CPZ exemption) 
Transport for London                                     £ 20,000 
Archaeology     £ 4,321 
Health      £ 32,008 

Total                                                              £169,171
Administration fee                                  £ 3,317

The s.106 would ring-fence an amount of £22, 919 towards Camberwell Leisure 
Centre, this being an environmental priority project in the local area. An update will be 
provided at the Community Council meeting in relation to securing details of tree 
planting on the street (three trees have been agreed to be planted) which will need to 
be secured through the S106.  The proposed green travel plan should also be 
secured through the S106. 

Public realm, transport, archaeology and employment contributions are to be paid 
upon commencement.  The other payments may wait until first occupation. 

The contribution of £169,171 is considered reasonable in the light of previous 
negotiations, current market conditions, and the level of Affordable Housing provision 
that is being proposed for this site. 

In the absence of a Deed of variation  being completed at least 3 days by the expiry of 
the 13 week statutory period for determining this application, (i.e. by 6/2/2010 in order 
to determine the application by 9/2/2010 as required, the applicant will be deemed to 
have failed to adequately mitigate against the impacts of the development. 

In accordance with the recommendation, should an acceptable Section 106 
Agreement not be signed within the specified time (by 6/2/2010), in accordance with 
Article 22 of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) 
(England) (Amendment) Order 2003, it is recommended that the application be 

31



96

refused for the following reason: 

“In the absence of a signed Section 106 Agreement, there is no mechanism in place 
to avoid or mitigate the impact of the proposed development on the public realm, 
public open space, the transport network, health facilities and employment and the 
proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy 2.5 of the Southwark Plan and Policy 
6A.5 of the London Plan.”

97
Other matters 
Construction impacts - The scheme would be likely to impact on amenities of 
surrounding occupiers by reason of noise in particular through construction, although 
such impacts are considered to be inevitable as part of any development project, and 
can be mitigated through compliance with the provisions of environmental protection 
legislation including the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  A condition is recommended in 
relation to securing details of an environmental management plan that would help to 
mitigate impacts in terms of noise, dust and vibration, in accordance with policy 3.2 
Protection of amenity of the Southwark Plan 2007. The specific objection by 'Go 
ahead Group' that the proposal will require "line of junction" agreements from the Go-
ahead Group, stating that this agreement would not be able to be granted due to the 
level of disruption that would arise from the construction, is not a material planning 
consideration but is a separate matter for the applicant to take into account.

98
Conclusion
The scheme is acceptable, both in terms of design, appearance within the 
streetscene, and impact on amenity of the surrounding and future residents of the 
site.  Affordable housing provision and s.106 have been negotiated and are deemed 
to be the optimum for this site in view of the developer's Financial Appraisal.

COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 

99 In line with the Council's Community Impact Statement the impact of this application 
has been assessed as part of the application process with regard to local people in 
respect of their age, disability, faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual
orientation. Consultation with the community has been undertaken as part  of the 
application process. 

 a]    The impact on local people is set out above. 

 b]  The following issues relevant to particular communities/groups likely to  be affected 
by the proposal have been identified as; 
- amenity for future residents, 
- design of facade 
- impact of the adjacent  proposed bus garage on the amenity of the future residents, 
- affordable housing provision at 35% 
- s.106 contribution including monies towards Camberwell Leisure Centre.  

 c]   The likely adverse or less good implications for any particular communities/groups 
have been also been discussed above. Negotiations during the application 
assessment have resolved the concerns. 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IMPLICATIONS
100

101

Southwark Plan policies 3.4 and 3.5 relate to energy efficiency and renewables. 
London Plan policy 4A.1 sets out an energy hierarchy to be followed. London plan 
policy 4A.7 requires a 20% cut in CO2 emissions via energy efficiency and 
renewables.

This sustainability assessment incorporates measures to reduce the demand for 

32



102

103

water and recycle grey water and rainwater in line with policy 3.9.  These should be 
secured by use of a condition. As also set out in the outline sustainability assessment, 
this proposal would ensure that adequate provision of recycling, composting and 
residual waste disposal, storage and collection facilities are provided in line with policy 
3.7.  These items should also be secured by a condition. 

Energy Efficiency and on site renewables
The BREEAM assessment in relation to the retail element confirms that the 
development would achieve a Very Good rating.  The energy statement submitted 
with the application which demonstrates how the development will meet Policy 4A.7 
which requires a carbon reduction through on-site renewables of the London Plan. 
The energy statement provided suggests that a 21.6% reduction in CO2 emissions 
would result from on site renewable energy. Conditions should be imposed to ensure 
that the scheme delivers to this specification. 

Code for Sustainable Homes. To qualify for Code for Sustainable homes level 3 
accreditation 25% energy improvement over the Target Emissions Rate (TER) is 
needed and the energy statement demonstrates that this can be achieved.  The 
applicant predicts achieving CSH level 3, and a condition is recommended to require 
details of this level having been achieved post-completion. 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
This planning application engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 
2008 (the HRA).  The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ‘engage’ simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant.  This application has the legitimate aim of providing for a mixed 
use development, subject to a variation of a condition in relation to a previously issued 
planning permission. The rights potentially engaged by this application, including a 
right to a fair trial and the right to respect for private and family life are not considered 
to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.   

LEAD OFFICER Gary Rice Head of Development Management
REPORT AUTHOR Susannah Pettit Planning Officer -Development 

Management [tel. 020 7525 5405] 
CASE FILE TP/2507-316  
Papers held at: Regeneration and neighbourhoods dept.  

tel.: 020 7525 5403 email:planning.enquiries@southwark.gov.uk

33



RECOMMENDATION
LDD MONITORING FORM REQUIRED 

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below. 
This document is not a decision notice for this application. 

Applicant Mr D. Johnston 
Grangewalk Homes Ltd 

Reg. Number 09-AP-2500 

Application Type S.73 Vary/remove conds/minor alterations 
Recommendation Grant subject to Legal Agreement Case 

Number
TP/2507-316 

Draft of Decision Notice

Planning Permission was GRANTED for the following development:
 Variation of Condition 17 on approved application 09-AP-0717 dated 29/10/2009 (for a five storey building 

comprising an A1 retail unit and 37 residential flats), in which Condition 17 restricted the hours of operation of the 
approved retail unit at Ground Floor level to "08:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Saturday or 11:00 to 22:00 on other 
Sundays and Bank Holidays" to now read: "The use hereby permitted to the ground floor for retail purposes (Class 
A1) shall not be carried on outside the hours of 07:00 - 23:00 Mondays to Saturdays, and 08:00-22:00 on Sundays 
and Bank Holidays". 

At: 316-322 CAMBERWELL NEW ROAD, LONDON SE5 

In accordance with application received on 06/11/2009     

and Applicant's Drawing Nos. Site plan 

Subject to the following condition:
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the end of the expiry of three years from the date of 

the planning permission LBS Reg 09AP0717 dated 29/10/2009, which the granting of this consent would vary, 
(ie before the expiry of three years from 29/10/2009). 

Reason 
As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 

2 Samples of the bricks and reconstituted stone, to be used in the carrying out of this permission shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any work in connection with this 
permission is carried out and the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any 
such approval given. 

Reason 
In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied as to the details of the brick and reconstituted 
stone, in the interest of the appearance of the building in accordance with Policy 3.12 'Quality in Design' of the 
Southwark Plan 2007.  

3 All residential premises shall be designed to attain the following internal noise levels: 
Bedrooms- 30dB LAeq,T* and 45dB LAfmax
Living rooms- 30dB LAeq, T*

Reason 
In order to protect the amenity of the residents of the site, in accordance with policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity 
of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

4 Dwelling houses, flats and rooms for residential purposes sharing a party element with commercial premises 
shall be designed and constructed to provide reasonable resistance to the transmission of sound.  The sound 
insulation of the party element shall be sufficient to ensure that NR25 is not exceeded in residential premises 
due to noise from the commercial premises.  Any scheme approved is to be completed prior to the 
commencement of the use hereby permitted and shall be permanently maintained thereafter. 

Reason 
In order to protect the amenity of the residents of the site, in accordance with policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity 

34



of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

5 Dwelling houses, flats and rooms for residential purposes sharing a party element with commercial premises 
shall be designed and constructed to provide reasonable resistance to the transmission of sound.  The sound 
insulation of the party element shall be sufficient to ensure that NR25 is not exceeded in residential premises 
due to noise from the commercial premises.  Any scheme approved is to be completed prior to the 
commencement of the use hereby permitted and shall be permanently maintained thereafter. 

Reason 
In order to protect the amenity of the residents of the site, in accordance with policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity 
of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

6 The rated noise level from any plant, together with any associated ducting, shall be 10 dB(A) or more below 
the measured LA90 level at the nearest noise sensitive premises. The method of assessment shall be carried 
in accordance with BS4142:1997 'Rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.  The 
equipment shall be installed and constructed in accordance with any approved scheme and be permanently 
maintained thereafter. 

Reason 
In order to protect the amenity of the residents and users of the surrounding area, in accordance with policy 
3.2 Protection of Amenity of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

7 Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required to be carried 
out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not commence until conditions 8 to 10 have been 
complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after development has begun, development must be 
halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing until condition 10 has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

Reason 
In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the remediation strategy associated with the 
development, in accordance with policy 3.1 Environmental effects of the adopted Southwark Plan 2007 and 
PPS 23 Planning and Pollution Control. 

8 An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, 
shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the 
site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. The investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken by 
competent persons and a written report of the findings shall be produced and  submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval in writing. 

Reason 
In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the remediation strategy associated with the 
development, in accordance with 3.1 Environmental effects of the adopted Southwark Plan 2007 and PPS 23 
Planning and Pollution Control. 

9 Subject to the findings of Condition 8, (investigation and risk assessment), if deemed necessary pursuant to 
Condition 8, prior to commencement of works, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition 
suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property 
and the natural and historic environment shall be prepared, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval in writing. 

Reason 
In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the remediation strategy associated with the 
development, in accordance with policy 3.1 Environmental effects of the adopted Southwark Plan 2007 and 
PPS 23 Planning and Pollution Control. 

10 Any remediation scheme approved pursuant to Condition 9 shall be carried out in accordance with its terms 
prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority shall be given two weeks 
written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

35



Reason 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are 
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors in accordance with policy 3.1 Environmental effects of the adopted Southwark Plan 2007 and PPS 
23 Planning and Pollution Control. 

11 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not 
previously identified it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation 
and risk assessment shall be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 8, and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
condition 9, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  

Reason 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are 
minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors in accordance with policy 3.1 Environmental effects of the adopted Southwark Plan 2007 and PPS 
23 Planning and Pollution Control. 

12 The development shall not commence until details of an Environmental Management Plan have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for that part of the development.  The 
Environmental Management Plan shall oblige the applicant, or developer and its contractor to use all best 
endeavours to minimise disturbances including but not limited to noise, vibration, dust, smoke and plant 
emissions emanating from the site during demolition and construction. 

Reason: 
In order to protect the amenity of the residents and users of the surrounding area, in accordance with policy 
3.2 Protection of Amenity of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

13 The details of the location, arrangements for and level of provision of recycling, composting and residual 
waste 
disposal, storage and collection facilities as set out in the Sustainability Assessment (TC Issue 1 Rev C dated 
8/5/09), shall be incorporated into the scheme, and thereafter maintained, and the refuse storage 
arrangements shown on approved drawing P100 rev E shall be provided and available for use by the 
occupiers of the dwellings before those dwellings are occupied and the facilities provided shall thereafter be 
retained and  shall not be used or the space used for any other purpose without the prior written consent of 
the Council as local planning authority. 

Reason 
In order that the Council may be satisfied that the refuse will be appropriately stored within the site thereby 
protecting the amenity of the site and the area in general from litter, odour and potential vermin/pest nuisance 
in accordance with Policy 3.7: Waste Reduction, of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

14 The cycle storage facilities as shown on drawing P100 rev E shall be provided before the units hereby 
approved are occupied and thereafter such facilities shall be retained and the space used for no other purpose 
without prior written consent of the local planning authority. 

Reason 
To ensure that satisfactory safe and secure bicycle parking is provided and retained for the benefit of the 
users and occupiers of the building in order to encourage the use of alternative means of transport and to 
reduce reliance on the use of the private car in accordance with Policy 5.6 'Walking and Cycling' of the 
Southwark  Plan 2007. 

15 The provision of energy efficiency measures and on-site renewable energy, as set out in the submitted Energy 
Statement (TC/MM Issue 1 Rev H dated 8/5/08), shall be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby approved. 

Reason 
To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the scheme is of a suitable standard of 
sustainable construction in accordance with policies 3.4 Energy efficiency and 3.5 Renewable energy of the 
Southwark Plan 2007.  

36



16 A monitoring report shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority two years after 
completion of the proposed development, of the consumption of energy on the site and the delivery of the 
energy efficiency measures and the provision of renewable energy from the on site renewable energy 
resources which are hereby approved, to demonstrate whether the development is delivering at least the 
predicted reduction in the site's baseline predicted energy demand as set out in the submitted Energy 
Statement (TC/MM Issue 1 Rev H dated 8/5/08), through the provision of energy efficiency measures and the 
provision of on site renewable energy. 

In the event that the contribution is less than that specified above, the applicant shall agree in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority a process by which the on site renewable energy shall be increased to meet these 
requirements. The agreed process shall be implemented within 30 months of practical completion of the 
development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  

Reason 
To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the scheme is of a suitable standard of 
sustainable construction in accordance with policies 3.4 Energy efficiency and 3.5 Renewable energy of the 
Southwark Plan 2007.  

17 The use hereby permitted to the ground floor, for retail purposes (Use class A1) shall not be carried on outside 
of the hours 07:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Saturday or 08:00 to 22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

Reason 
In order to ensure there is no loss of amenity to the surrounding and on-site residents, caused by activity late 
at night associated with the retail unit hereby approved, in accordance with policy 3.2 Protection of Amenity of 
the Southwark Plan 2007. 

18 The landscaping and planting within the site boundaries shown on the drawings hereby approved, including 
the trees shown on drawing number P/100 E which shall be planted as mature species, shall be carried out in 
the first appropriate planting season following the completion of the building works and maintained thereafter. 

Reason 
In order to ensure that the development attains an acceptable standard of visual amenity , in accordance with 
policies 3.2 Protection of amenity and 3.13 Urban design of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

19 The sustainability measures outlines in the submitted Sustainability Assessment (TC Issue 1 Rev C dated 
8/5/09) (namely solar water heating, photovoltaics, exhaust air heat pumps, recycling of grey water and 
rainwater, recycling, composting and residual waste disposal) shall be installed prior to occupation of the 
development hereby permitted and shall be maintained thereafter. 

Reason  
In order to ensure that the development is of an acceptable standard of sustainable design and construction, 
in accordance with policy 3.3 Sustainability Assessment of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

20 No development shall take place within the proposed development site until the applicant, or their agents or 
their successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological evaluation works in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted to the local planning authority 
and approved in writing. 

Reason 
To ensure that the archaeological operations (programme of archaeological evaluation works) are undertaken 
to an appropriate standard, that the archaeological interests of the site are appropriately managed, that any 
findings are appropriately disseminated, that any recovered artefacts are conserved and that the information is 
archived, in accordance with Policy 3.19 Archaeology of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

21 No development shall take place within the proposed development site until the applicant, or their agents or 
their successors in title, has produced a detailed scheme showing the complete scope and arrangement of the 
foundation design and ground works, which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.

Reason: 

37



 To ensure that significant archaeological remains are not disturbed or damaged by foundations and related 
works, but are, where appropriate, preserved in situ, in accordance with Policy 3.19 Archaeology of the 
Southwark Plan 2007. 

22 Within six months of the completion of archaeological site works the applicants shall submit an assessment 
report detailing the proposals for post-excavation works, publication of the site and preparation of the archive 
and this document shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approved in writing. 

Reason: 
To ensure that any findings are appropriately disseminated, that any recovered artefacts are conserved and 
that the information is archived and the project is published in a suitable way.  This will be demonstrated by 
the production of a document following the guidance of Management of Archaeological Projects II (MAP II 
assessment report), in accordance with Policy 3.19 Archaeology of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

23 The proposed residential development shall be implemented to deliver a Code for Sustainable Homes rating 
of at least level 3 (or to any updated equivalent standard), and in relation to the retail development, to achieve 
at least BREEAM 'Very good' (or to any updated equivalent standard). Prior to occupation of the development, 
a Code for Sustainable Homes and a BREEAM post construction review, carried out by a licensed assessor, 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority to verify delivery of this specification for approval in writing. 

Reason 
To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the scheme is of a suitable standard of 
sustainable construction in accordance with  Policies 3.1 (Environmental Effects), 3.3 Sustainability 
assessments, 3.4 (Energy Efficiency), 3.5 (Renewable Energy) and 3.9 (Water) of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

24 The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Servicing Management Plan(Application 
Draft) received 22//5/09 in particular in relation to the use of the loading bay and details of servicing and 
deliveries.

Reason 
To ensure that the transport impacts of the scheme in relation to servicing and deliveries are adequately 
managed to avoid harm to the safety and convenience of the use of the footpath and highway, in accordance 
with Policy 5.2 Transport impacts of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

Reasons for granting planning permission.

This planning application was considered with regard to various policies including, but not exclusively: 

a] Policies SP5 Regeneration and employment opportunities, SP6 Accessible services, SP 9 Meeting 
community needs, SP15 Open space and biodiversity, SP17 Housing; SP18 Sustainable transport, 1.1 
Access to employment opportunities, 1.8 Location of developments for retail and other town centre 
uses, 2.1 Enhancement of community facilities, 2.2 Provision of new community facilities, 2.3 
Enhancement of education facilities, 2.4 Educational deficiencies,  2.5 Planning Obligations,  3.2 
Protection of Amenity,  3.3 Sustainability assessment,  3.4 Energy efficiency,  3.5 Renewable energy,  
3.6 Air Quality,  3.7 Waste Reduction,  3.9 Water,  3.11 Efficient Use of Land,  3.12 Quality in design,  
3.13 Urban design,  3.14 Designing out crime,  3.18 Setting of listed buildings, conservation areas and 
world heritage sites,  3.9 Archaeology, 4.1 Density of Residential Development,  4.2 Quality of 
Residential Accommodation,  4.3 Mix of Dwellings,  4.4 Affordable Housing,  4.5 Wheelchair affordable 
housing,  5.1 Locating developments,  5.2 Transport Impacts,  5.3 Walking and Cycling, 5.4 Public 
transport improvements, 5.6 Car Parking,  5.7 Parking standards for disable people and mobility 
impaired, of the Southwark Plan [July  2007].

b] Policies 2A.1 Sustainability criteria,  3A.1 Increasing London's supply of housing,  3A.3 Maximising the 
potential of sites,  3A.6 Quality of new housing provision,  3A.9 Affordable housing targets, 3A.10 
Negotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and mixed use schemes,  3A.18 
Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure and Community Facilities, 3A.24 Education 
facilities, 3C.3 Sustainable transport in London, 3C.17 Tackling congestion and reducing traffic,  3C.18 
Allocation of street space, 3C.21 Improving Conditions for Walking , 3C.22 Improving Conditions for 
Cycling , 3C.23 Parking Strategy, 3C.24 Parking in town centres, 3D.8 Realising the Value of Open 
Space, 3D.14 Biodiversity and nature conservation, 3D.11 Open space provision in UDPs, 4A.3 
Sustainable design and construction,  4A.4 Energy Assessment,  4A.7 Renewable Energy,  4A.11 
Living Roofs and Walls,  4A.14 Sustainable drainage,  4A.17 Water quality,  4A.18 Water and sewage 
infrastructure,  4A.19 Improving air quality,  4B.1 Design principles for a compact city,  4B.2 Promoting 

38



world class architecture and design,  4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment,  4B.8 Respect local 
context and communities, 4B.14 Archaeology, 6A.4 Priorities in planning obligations of the London Plan 
[2004].

c] Planning Policy Statements [PPS] and Guidance Notes [PPG]  PPS1 Delivering sustainable 
development, PPS 3  Housing, PPS 22 Renewable Energy, PPS23 Planning and Pollution Control, 
PPG 13 Transport, PPG24 Planning and noise. 

Particular regard was had to the impact of the proposed retail use adjacent to the town centre and the 
acceptability of a mixed use development including residential in this location, where it was considered that 
the retail would support the town centre uses adjacent and that residential would be acceptable taking into 
account the character of the area and as the scheme would provide for a good quality of residential 
accommodation having regard to residential design standards and would not result in harm to the amenity of 
adjoining occupiers. The height, scale and massing, given the high quality of the design, are considered to be 
acceptable within the context of the surrounding environment.  The traffic impacts, car and cycle parking 
provisions, and servicing arrangements are also acceptable.   

Conditions are recommended to mitigate particular impacts of the scheme in relation to sustainability, design 
quality, and landscaping. Planning obligations will be secured to offset the impact of the development in 
accordance with the SPD on Planning Obligations. Concerns raised by surrounding occupiers in relation to 
matters including loss of light, disruption during construction and scale and massing were not considered to 
result in harm such as to warrant refusal of the scheme.  

Regard was had to the effect of the permission if the hours of operation for the previously approved ground 
floor retail unit were to be varied, and it was considered that the relaxation of the hours would not be harmful 
to the amenities of future and surrounding occupiers, having had regard to the character of the surrounding 
area.  It was therefore considered appropriate to grant planning permission having regard to the policies 
considered and other material planning considerations. 

39



S
ca

le
 1

/1
25

0

D
at

e 
31

/1
2/

20
09

F
L

A
T

 6
-4

0,
 F

E
A

R
N

L
E

Y
 H

O
U

S
E

 L
E

T
T

S
O

M
 E

S
T

A
T

E
, V

E
S

T
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
, L

O
N

D
O

N
, S

E
5 

8J
W

A
D

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

40



Item No 

3

Classification

OPEN

Decision Level 

CAMBERWELL 
COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Date

13/1/2010 

From

Head of Development Management 

Title of Report

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

Proposal   (09-CO-0095)

Conversion of 35 existing sheltered accommodation 
flats at ground floor level, and associated areas, into 
17 general needs flats (8 x two bed, 8 x three bed,1 
x four bed), and associated landscaping and 
disabled parking bays and elevational alterations, 
including works to the flats  to be insulated externally 
and over clad with brick slips and render, and three 
external stairs serving upper floors are to be 
removed and the three original internal stairwells are 
to be reinstated. 

Address

FLATS 6-40, FEARNLEY HOUSE 
LETTSOM ESTATE, VESTRY 
ROAD, LONDON, SE5 8JW 

Ward Brunswick Park

PURPOSE 

1 To consider the above application. The application requires Community Council 
consideration because it is a 'Council's own' development that has received more 
than one objection.

RECOMMENDATION 

2 Grant planning permission. 

 BACKGROUND 

Site location and description
3

4

5

The application site, Fearnley House, consists of blocks of two and four storey flats, 
arranged in an 'H' shape, with internal courtyards in between the buildings.  Fearnley 
House is located in the north eastern corner of the Lettsome Estate, which contains a 
number of additional, similar residential blocks of a similar heights and styles to 
Fearnley House.   

The application relates solely to the ground floor of Fearnley House.  Flats 6-40 are 
used as sheltered flats, and flats on the upper floors are used as general needs 
social housing.  The estate is managed by the Council. 

The site is located in the Urban Density Zone and has a Public Transport 
Accessibility Level of 5.  It is not within a Controlled Parking Zone.  It is not a Listed 
Building.  It is not located within a Conservation Area, but the Sceaux Gardens 
Conservation Area boundary runs close to the south of the site. 

41



Details of proposal
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

The proposal under consideration is for the conversion of 35 existing sheltered 
accommodation flats and associated areas located on the ground floor, into 17 
general needs flats (8 x two beds, 8 x three beds & 1 x four beds) with associated 
landscaping, two disabled parking bays adjacent to Walters House, in the north west 
corner of the estate, and elevational alterations.  The elevational alterations include 
general repairs and installation of new windows to facilitate the revised layout works. 

A rationale behind the conversion has been provided by the applicant, and states that 
following a review by the Housing department in 2004, the survey found that a 
number of bedsits and shared facilities schemes were of poor quality and did not 
meet the needs of frail and disabled residents.  The sheltered units on the ground 
floor of Fearnley House form a part of a block with larger homes on the upper floors, 
and because it is integrated into an estate, it has been difficult to let.  There is an 
identified need for large family sized units for social rent. 

The flats are to be thermally insulated externally and over clad with brick slips and 
render. Three external stairs serving upper floors are to be removed and the three 
original internal stairwells are to be reinstated. 

The elevational alterations also include new windows and doors, with white powder 
coated aluminium frames, to match existing as well as the replacement of some 
doors with windows given the reduction in the number of units proposed. 

Two disabled parking bays are proposed to be located to the north western corner of 
the site, on Lettsome Street, outside Walters House. 

New areas for the storage of bins (2 containers per unit) and cycle stands, are also 
proposed to the flats, to be accessed from the proposed ramped access ways.  
Seven of the units would have storage space for two cycles, and the rest would have 
one each.  These would be external, but would be within the demise of each 
individual unit's entrance way.  

The proposal is Council's own development which will be retained by the Council as 
social rented units for general needs. 

Planning history
13 There is no relevant planning history. 

Planning history of adjoining sites
14 There is no relevant planning history 

FACTORS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Main Issues 

15 The main issues in this case are: 

a]   the principle of the development in terms of land use and conformity with strategic 
policies. 

b] the quality of the residential accommodation achieved as a result 

c] transport impacts. 

d] impacts on the amenity of the surrounding occupiers.  

42



Planning Policy

16 Southwark Plan 2007 [July]
2.5 Planning Obligations
3.2 Protection of Amenity 
3.3 Sustainability Assessment 
3.4 Energy Efficiency 
3.5 Renewable Energy 
3.7 Waste Reduction 
3.11 Efficient use of land 
3.12 Quality in Design 
3.13 Urban design
3.14 Designing out crime
4.2 Quality of Residential Accommodation 
4.3 Mix of Dwellings 
4.4 Affordable housing 
4.6 Loss of Residential Accommodation 
5.2 Transport Impacts
5.3 Walking and Cycling 
5.6 Car Parking 
5.7 Parking standards for disable people and mobility impaired

Residential Design Standards Supplementary Planning Document Jan 2008 

17 London Plan 2004
3A.1 Increasing London’s supply of housing 
3A.2 Borough Housing Targets 
3A.3 Maximising the potential of sites 
3A.4 Efficient use of stock 
3A.5 Housing Choice 
3C.23 Parking Strategy
4B.1 Design principles for a compact city. 
4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.8 Respect local context and communities 
6A.5 Planning Obligations

18 Planning Policy Guidance [PPG] and Planning Policy Statements [PPS]
PPS 1 Delivering Sustainable Development 

Consultations

19 Site notice date: 13 Oct 2009 Press notice date: 1 Oct 2009 

Neighbour consultation letters sent:  1 Oct 2009 

Case officer site visit date:   13 Oct 2009, unaccompanied site visit undertaken 

20

21

Internal consultees
Access Officer 
Traffic Group 
Planning Policy 

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
Not required 

43



22

23

Neighbour consultees
Refer to Acolaid consultee list attached as appendix 1 

Re-consultation
Further consultation carried out with residents following the initially identified 
consultee area, as there was a geographic area surrounding the site that had been 
missed out in error.  These further consultation letters were sent 18/11/2009. 

Consultation replies 

24

25

Internal consultees

Access Officer: 
Concerns that there is no wheelchair storage space or charging area within the 
wheelchair units, but acknowledges that the units are existing so the scope for 
reconfiguration within the envelope is limited. 

Traffic Group:
The quantity of cycle storage proposed exceeds policy and is welcomed. 
The applicant is required to submit detailed and accurate plans to demonstrate the 
provision of cycle storage.
This proposal is located in an area with a low TfL PTAL rating (1), reflecting the 
area’s poor level of access to all forms of public transport.  
Developments in areas with this PTAL rating are required to provide on site parking in 
order to minimise overspill parking on the road network. 
However, as this is conversion (and reduction in units), parking is not requested.
The provision of disabled parking, as demonstrated in drawing 019 271 007, is 
acceptable.
Servicing for new developments is usually required to take place off street. However, 
given that this is a conversion of an existing development, it is requested that an 
informative be added to the decision notice, making the Applicant aware that any 
servicing which takes place on street, is subject to local restrictions.

Planning Policy - No S.106 agreement is required for this application due to the 
reduction in the number of units on site, and the re-use of existing floorspace. 

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
None

26

27

Neighbour consultees

At the time of writing two initial objections had been received, and two 
representations that raised issues but stated neither support nor objection. Any 
further representations will be reported to the Community Council at the meeting. 
Representations are summarised as follows: 

Objections as follows: 

102 Vestry Road - object on grounds health and safety, the removal of a staircase 
would result in inconvenience and a fire hazard, a lift should be installed rather than 
removing the staircase.  

49 Fearnley House - comment 
It would be preferable that the interior trunking and ceilings are to be soundproofed. 
Also have concerns regarding extra parking that may arise from the new family sized 
homes.

44



28

29

Two other representations (neither support nor object) 

Southwark Cyclists - comment that a condition should be imposed to provide covered 
bike parking spaces 130% for residents and 5 racks for visitors within 30 metres of 
the site. 

45 Graces Rd - queries whether additional height (by way of additional floors) was 
proposed.  Officer note:  no additional floors are proposed as the development 
involves conversion of the existing ground floor only).  

Re-consultation
One objection received; any additional responses will be reported to the Community 
Council at the meeting. 

3 Graces Rd - concern about noise during conversion/construction works 
- concern about additional noise in the final development 
- would want to see additional lighting and CCTV both for residents of the Estate as 
well as for those backing onto the Estate 
- queries whether the grassland at the rear of Fearnley House would be converted 
into gardens for the ground floor flats; objects if so on the following grounds: change 
of use as the existing space is little used and is use mainly for access; increased 
noise levels from use; and increased security risk 
- would want additional screening especially at upper levels especially since recent 
removal of vegetation, as the upper flats now overlook the properties to the rear more
- concerns about additional pressure on parking in an already pressured area as 
result of the development and as two parking spaces are allocated as disabled 
parking; would want to see residents parking only in the area, starting with Graces Rd 
and Vestry Rd 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

30

31

Principle of development 
The proposal involves the conversion of 35 existing sheltered accommodation flats 
and associated areas into 17 general needs flats (8 x two beds, 8 x three beds & 1 x 
four beds) including associated landscaping and disabled parking bays, including 
elevational alterations and as such regard must be had for Policy 4.2 'Quality of 
Residential Accommodation' and Policy 4.6 'Loss of Residential Accommodation' of 
the Southwark Plan. Policy 4.2 states that 'Planning permission will be granted for 
residential development, including dwellings within mixed use schemes, provided that 
they:
i) achieve good quality living conditions; and  
ii) include high standards of : 
  Accessibility, including seeking to ensure that all new housing is built to lifetime  

       homes standards 
  Privacy and Outlook 
  Natural daylight and sunlight 
  Ventilation 
  Space including suitable outdoor/green space 
  Safety and security 
  Protection from pollution, including noise and light pollution.  

Quality of Accommodation
The proposed flats, each with a minimum overall floorspace of between 62 and 67 
sq.m for two beds, 89 and 94 sq.m for three beds and 150 sq.m for four bed provides 
generous floor areas that exceeds the Council's minimum room size/floorspace 
standards as set out in the adopted SPD Residential Design Guidelines. Two units 

45



32

have been  designed to be wheelchair accessible, being one of the 3-bed and the 4-
bed unit.   The proposal is consistent with policies on mix of dwellings and quality of 
residential accommodation, as at least 10% of the units would be wheelchair 
accessible and given the quality of residential accommodation achieved which is 
considered acceptable.  The quality of accommodation proposed is further explored 
in the Amenity section (paragraph) 

Policy 4.6 'Loss of Residential Accommodation' of the Plan states that 'Development 
will not be permitted where it results in a net loss of residential floorspace. Although 
the proposal will result in a net reduction of residential units from 35 to 17, there is no 
loss of residential floorspace. The proposal involves the rationalization of the 
residential floorspace by creating larger units although the total number will be 
reduced. This is considered acceptable, in particular, as the housing would meet 
identified housing needs including larger family homes in social rented tenure.

33
Environmental impact assessment 
A formal EIA was not required taking into account that the site was previously 
developed and taking into account the impacts of the development in this context.  

34

35

36

37

38

39

Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 
surrounding area, and future occupiers 
All the units exceed the Council's minimum floorspace standards, 2 beds measuring 
62, 63, 64 and 67 sq.m; 3 beds measuring 89 and 94 sq.m and the four bed unit 
measuring 150 sq.m.  One of the three bedroom and one of the four bedroom units 
are designed to be wheelchair accessible. 

It is unlikely that the proposal will result in loss of amenity for nearby residents in so 
far as light infringement, loss of outlook or loss of privacy is concerned, as there is no 
change proposed to the building envelope or footprint. The proposal involves the 
rationalisation of existing dwellings which involves mainly internal alterations thus 
reducing the number of residential units from 35 to 17 in total. Although this reduction 
accounts for smaller units being made into larger units this will have no impact on 
residential amenity. The proposal involves elevational alterations with new windows 
and doors and doors being replaced with windows. In aesthetic terms this is 
considered acceptable and will not have a detrimental impact on visual amenity.  

Concern was raised about a general increase in noise from the development.  Given 
that there is no material change of use and as the scheme remains residential, it is 
not considered that there would be undue noise as a result of the conversion to family 
homes.  If there were noise of an un-neighbourly variety, then there is protection from 
statutory noise nuisance and the Council's Environmental Protection Team are the 
appropriate point of contact in that regard. 

The proposed external works include landscaping, including general improvements 
and ramped entrance ways into flats.  The existing communal areas have several 
steps up to access ways, therefore the removal of these would improve accessibility 
for those with mobility problems, wheelchair users as well as people with pushchairs. 

Whilst the access officer had concerns that there is no wheelchair storage space or 
charging area within the wheelchair units, it is acknowledged that the units are 
existing so the scope for reconfiguration within the envelope is limited.  The units are 
large family sized units so there would be space within them to accommodate the 
storage areas.  

The Council would normally seek the provision of private amenity space for new 
family accommodation, but in this instance that may not be practicable as the scheme 
involves the conversion of an existing building on an existing housing estate, with a 

46



40

limited amount of open space available to the Estate overall, whether this is private or 
communal.  It is considered on balance that the provision of the units, without private 
amenity space, would be acceptable taking into account the constraints of the site in 
its context, and as the Estate overall benefits from communal open space. 

The proposal is considered to be consistent with policies 3.2 Protection of amenity 
and 4.2 Quality of residential accommodation of the Southwark Plan 2007.

41

Impact of adjoining and nearby uses on occupiers and users of proposed 
development
None envisaged. The proposed units form part of a large housing estate and 
therefore unlikely to raise any amenity issues given its previous residential use.

42

43

44

45

46

Traffic issues 
The site is located within an area with a relatively low Public Transport Accessibility 
Level, comprised partly of 2 and partly of 1b.  As such, on site parking at a maximum 
of 1 space per unit is normally required in order to minimise overspill parking on the 
road network. However, as this is conversion (and there would be a net reduction in 
units compared with existing), additional on-site parking is not requested as it would 
be unreasonable in the circumstances.

It is unlikely that the proposal will give rise to traffic issues. The application premises 
is part of a very large residential estate that benefits from generous amenities 
including parking and private garages. Whilst there is the potential for an increase in 
car ownership given that the proposal involves provision of general needs social 
rented housing at the expense of sheltered housing where car ownership is less 
likely, the overall reduction in unit numbers, of approximately 50%, means that the 
proposal will not be likely to increase the pressure on existing parking provision.  
There is no policy differentiation between types of unit, and the reduction in numbers 
is significant such that no significant increase in parking pressure is envisaged as a 
result of the proposal. 

All the units are provided with at least one secure cycle space within the entrance 
ramp associated with each flat.

The proposal meets with policy 5.7 (Parking standards for disabled people and the 
mobility impaired) as two accessible parking bays are provided. 

Each flat has two refuse bins (180L sized receptacles), to be located within an 
associated storage shelter.  These receptacles are of an adequate size for the 
storage of both refuse and recyclables.  The is in accordance with policy 3.7 Waste 
Reduction.

47
Design issues 
The proposal involves the rationalization of existing ground floor units of a large 
residential block reducing the number of units from 35 sheltered units to 17 general 
needs units. Given the proposal involves mainly internal reorganisation, there are no 
design issues arising. It should be borne in mind however that the proposal involves 
elevational alterations to the ground floor of the building affected by the proposal. 
New windows and doors are proposed, including replacing some doors with windows. 
In visual amenity terms, these alterations will not alter the appearance of the building 
in a significant way resulting in detriment to the overall appearance of the building. 

48
Impact on character and setting of a listed building and/or conservation area 
None envisaged. The application property is not adjoined to a listed building neither is 
it in a conservation area.

47



49
Impact on trees 
There are no trees affected by the proposal.

50
Planning obligations [S.106 undertaking or agreement] 
The proposal is for the creation of 17 residential units which would normally trigger a 
requirement for a S106 planning obligation to offset the impacts of the scheme in 
relation to infrastructure provision, having regard to Policy 2.5 Planning obligations of 
the Southwark Plan 2007 and the Council's SPD on Planning Obligations. In this 
instance however it is considered that there is justification for no S106 planning 
obligation to be required.  The proposal involves the conversion of existing residential 
floorspace by reducing the number of units from 35 sheltered units to 17 general 
needs affordable housing units for social rent.  Although the characteristics of the 
residents would be altered, from small household sheltered accommodation to 
providing for more family units, the quantum of numbers accommodated within the 
development is unlikely to alter significantly. Since the proposal involves the use of 
existing residential units to provide a lesser number of affordable units, it is not 
considered that in this case it is necessary to require a planning obligation to secure 
a contribution, due to the proposed housing meeting requirements of affordable larger 
sized family units. 

51

52

53

54

55

Other matters 
Sustainability - No additional energy efficiency measures are proposed as part of this 
application, although the applicant's statement does confirm that the units would meet 
the Eco Homes rating of very good.  The equivalent standard applied to 
developments is currently the Code for Sustainable Homes (level 3 required).  This is 
proposed to be secured by a condition. As the proposal is for the conversion of an 
existing building it would not possible to achieve the London Plan requirement of a 
20% carbon reduction through on-site renewables, as it would not be practicable 
these measures  to be built into the building's fabric for a ground floor conversion. 

Staircase implications - In terms of the objection regarding the removal of a staircase, 
the three staircases  that are to be removed are those that were installed when the 
ground floor flats were fully enclosed, preventing access for the general needs flats 
above through the sheltered scheme.  The original internal stairwell would be re-
instated as part of the proposal. 

Soundproofing - In terms of the objection regarding soundproofing, this would be a 
building control matter, and would be addressed when conversion works were taking 
place. In any event there is no change of use proposed as the use would remain 
residential in character and it would therefore be unreasonable to require additional 
soundproofing over and above the Building Regulations minimum standards. 

Construction impacts - Concerns have been raised about the impacts of the scheme 
on the amenities of neighbours during construction.  The scheme would be likely to 
impact on amenities by reason of noise in particular through construction, although 
such impacts are considered to be inevitable as part of any development project, and 
can be mitigated through compliance with the provisions of environmental protection 
legislation including the Control of Pollution Act 1974. For a scheme of this scale, a 
'construction management strategy' would be an overly onerous requirement. If there 
are problems, for example;  there is excessive noise, the Council's Environmental 
Protection Team would be the appropriate point of contact for action to be taken. 

Rear open space/private gardens - Clarification has been sought from the applicant 
about whether the existing open space to the rear of the ground floor flats, adjoining 
the Graces Rd properties, would be allocated as private gardens for each of the 
ground floor flats, or would it remain communal space as appears to be the case at 
present. The submitted plans do not appear to indicate that there would be any 

48



change, ie the space would remain communal as existing.  Concern was raised by an 
adjoining occupier about this matter.  Officers do not consider that the allocation of 
the space as private gardens would raise material planning grounds for refusal, as its 
use would remain as amenity space whether private or shared.  Concerns about 
noise from the use of the space could arise in either situation and any statutory noise 
nuisance can be dealt with by the Environmental Protection Team. It is not consider 
that there would be any additional security risk again because the use would not 
materially alter and if the space were to be allocated to each unit there may be more 
sense of 'ownership' of the spaces, more direct overlooking, and less security risks.  
The applicant's response on this matter will be reported to the Community Council at 
the meeting. 

56

57

58

Conclusion
In conclusion, the conversion of the sheltered accommodation into 17 general needs 
units is acceptable having had regard to the Council's planning policies on housing 
and in particular as the proposed development would meet an identified housing 
need, ie for family social rented accommodation.  The impacts of the scheme in 
relation to transport would not be significantly different from the existing situation, and 
as the character of the sue would not be altering from the existing residential use, 
and as the unit numbers overall would decrease, there would be no harm arising in 
relation to amenity impacts, such as noise and disturbance from the use.   

No planning obligation has been sought in relation to this development as the 
scheme would not be likely to place additional pressure upon infrastructure such as 
transport, health and open spaces beyond that pressure which would be generated 
by the existing use and an exception to the council's policies in this regard is 
therefore acceptable.

Overall the scheme is considered to be in accordance with the development plan and 
it is recommended that the scheme be approved. 

COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 

59 The proposal would not  result  in any significant impact on local people to warrant a 
refusal of planning permission in this instance. 

60 There are a number of particular communities  affected by the proposal, comprising 
existing residents of the units, and future occupiers;  the applicant has advised that 
the needs of the existing users of the sheltered accommodation would be met 
elsewhere through the Council's overall housing strategy and in addition the existing 
accommodation was not suitable for purpose.  The scheme would meet an identified 
need for social rented accommodation for families. 

61 There are no significant adverse implications on the community as a result of the 
proposed development. 

 HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
62

63

The proposal for the conversion of 35 existing sheltered accommodation flats and 
associated areas into 17 general needs flats (8 x two beds, 8 x three beds & 1 x four 
beds) including associated landscaping and disabled parking bays, including 
elevational alterations engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 
2008 (the HRA). The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
convention rights. The term 'engage' simply means that human rights may be 
affected or relevant. 

This application has the legitimate aim of providing a use for a lawful activity. The 
rights potentially engaged by this application, including a right to a fair trial and the 

49



right to respect for private and family life are not considered to be unlawfully 
interfered with by this proposal. 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IMPLICATIONS
64 The proposal would result in the re-use of vacant floorspace within a large residential 

estate providing much needed housing accommodation. 

LEAD OFFICER Gary Rice Head of Development Management
REPORT AUTHOR Donald Hanciles Senior Planner - Development 

Management [tel. 020 7525 5428] 
CASE FILE TP/H2075  
Papers held at: Regeneration and neighbourhoods dept.  

tel.: 020 7525 5403 email:planning.enquiries@southwark.gov.uk

                                                  
                                                               APPENDIX 1

TP No TP/H2075 Site FLATS 6-40, FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE, VESTRY ROAD, 
LONDON, SE5 8JW 

App. Type Council's Own Development - Reg. 3   

Date
Printed

Address 

01/10/2009 Flat G 3 Dunnage Crescent London  SE16 1FJ
01/10/2009 86 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8QD
01/10/2009 104, 106, 76, 82, 88, 90, 92, 94  VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 84 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 102 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 31 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 33 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 35 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 37 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 100 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 68 - 74 even VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8NX
01/10/2009 41 LINNELL ROAD LONDON   SE5 8NJ
01/10/2009 41A VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 41B VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 45A LINNELL ROAD LONDON   SE5 8NJ
01/10/2009 45B LINNELL ROAD LONDON   SE5 8NJ
01/10/2009 96 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 98 VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 35A, 35B, 37A, 37B, 39A, 39B  VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 108 - 112 EVEN VESTRY ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PQ
01/10/2009 FIRST FLOOR FLAT 33 VESTRY ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 SECOND FLOOR FLAT 33 VESTRY ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 GROUND FLOOR FLAT 31 VESTRY ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 GROUND FLOOR FLAT 33 VESTRY ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PG
01/10/2009 FLAT 73 - 76  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 55 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 65 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 66 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 68 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 69 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 70 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 71 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 72 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 50 - 54  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 77 - 80  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 10  - 18 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 56, 57, 58, 60 - 64 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 93 - 99  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
01/10/2009 FLAT 7 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 8 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 9 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 100 - 116 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
01/10/2009 FLAT 19 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 20 - 23  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 49 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW

50



01/10/2009 FLAT 44 - 47 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 106 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
01/10/2009 FLAT 24 - 34 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 48 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
01/10/2009 FLAT 81 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 GROUND FLOOR FLAT 47 LINNELL ROAD LONDON  SE5 8NJ
01/10/2009 FLAT 59 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 FLAT 67 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
01/10/2009 THE COACH HOUSE OSWYTH ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PG

18/11/2009 43 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 45 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 25A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 31A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 31B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 35B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 37B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 39 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 13 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 17 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 19 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 23 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 29 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 3 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 FLAT 1 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 11 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 14 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 16 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 18 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 3 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 41A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 FLAT 8 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 41B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 9B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 FLAT 6 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 8 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 1 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 14 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 16 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 3 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 5 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 89 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 90 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 92 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 5 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 6 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 124, 125, 127, 129, 132  FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 86 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 118 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 37 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 38 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 2 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 39 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 4, 41, 43 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 10 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 12 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 87 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 35 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 36 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 82 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
18/11/2009 FLAT 84 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
18/11/2009 FLAT 119 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 120 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 122 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 5B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 BASEMENT FLAT 1 GRACES ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 11 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 15 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 21 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 27 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 33 GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 23A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 25B GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 35A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 37A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 MAISONETTE GROUND FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR 1 GRACES ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 FLAT 83 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JR
18/11/2009 FLAT 1, 11, 13, 15 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ

51



18/11/2009 FLAT 2, 4, 6 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 3 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 40 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 42 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JW
18/11/2009 FLAT 7 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 9 PEMBURY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PJ
18/11/2009 FLAT 10, 12, 13, 15, 17 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 2, 4, 5, 7, 9 CHATHAM HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE MCNEIL ROAD LONDON SE5 8PN
18/11/2009 FLAT 117 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 121 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 123 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 126 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 128 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 130 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 131 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 85 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 5A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 9A GRACES ROAD LONDON   SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 FLAT 88 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 FLAT 91 FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE VESTRY ROAD LONDON SE5 8JX
18/11/2009 BASEMENT FLAT 7 GRACES ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PF
18/11/2009 GROUND FLOOR AND FIRST FLOOR FLAT 7B GRACES ROAD LONDON  SE5 8PF

      

52



RECOMMENDATION
LDD MONITORING FORM REQUIRED 

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below. 
This document is not a decision notice for this application. 

Applicant Ms Z. Weir 
Southwark Council 

Reg. Number 09-CO-0095 

Application Type Council's Own Development - Reg. 3 (Council's Own Development)
Recommendation Grant permission Case 

Number
TP/H2075 

Draft of Decision Notice

Permission was GRANTED, subject to the conditions and reasons stated in the Schedule below, for the following 
development:
 Conversion of 35 existing sheltered accommodation flats at ground floor level, and associated areas, into 17 

general needs flats (8 x two bed, 8 x three bed,1 x four bed), and associated landscaping and disabled parking 
bays and elevational alterations, including works to the flats  to be insulated externally and over clad with brick 
slips and render, and three external stairs serving upper floors are to be removed and the three original internal 
stairwells are to be reinstated. 

At: FLATS 6-40, FEARNLEY HOUSE LETTSOM ESTATE, VESTRY ROAD, LONDON, SE5 8JW 

In accordance with application received on 11/08/2009     

and Applicant's Drawing Nos. 019/271/001, 002, 003,  004,  005,  007,  008, 011,  012,  013,  014,  015,  016,  017,  
018,  019,  020,  021 
019/271/006,  009,  010   
Design & Access statement 

Schedule
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the end of three years from the date of this 

permission. 

Reason 
As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 

2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
019/271/001, 002, 003,  004,  005,  007,  008, 011,  012,  013,  014,  015,  016,  017,  018,  019,  020,  021 

Reason: 
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

3 The proposed residential development shall be implemented to deliver a Code for Sustainable Homes rating 
of at least level 3 (or to any equivalent standard). Prior to occupation of the development, a Code for 
Sustainable Homes (or to any equivalent standard) post construction review, carried out by a licensed 
assessor, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing to verify delivery of this 
specification.

Reason 
To ensure that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the scheme is of a suitable standard of 
sustainable construction in accordance with  Policies 3.1 (Environmental Effects), 3.3 Sustainability 
assessments, 3.4 (Energy Efficiency), 3.5 (Renewable Energy) and 3.9 (Water) of the Southwark Plan 2007. 

Reasons for granting planning permission.

This planning application was considered with regard to various policies including, but not exclusively: 

a]        Policies 2.5 Planning Obligations; 3.2 Protection of Amenity; 3.3 Sustainability Assessment; 3.4 Energy 
Efficiency; 3.5 Renewable Energy; 3.7 Waste Reduction; 3.11 Efficient use of land, 3.12 Quality in 
Design; 3.13 Urban design; 3.14 Designing out crime; 4.2 Quality of Residential Accommodation; 4.3 
Mix of Dwellings; 4.5 Wheelchair affordable housing; 4.6 Loss of Residential Accommodation; 5.2 
Transport Impacts; 5.3  Walking and Cycling; 5.6 Car Parking; 5.7 Parking standards for disable people 

53



and mobility impaired of the Southwark Plan [July  2007].  

b]      Policies 3A.1 Increasing London’s supply of housing; 3A.2 Borough Housing Targets; 3A.3 Maximising 
the potential of sites; 3A.4 Efficient use of stock; 3A.5 Housing Choice; 3C.23 Parking Strategy; 4B.1 
Design principles for a compact city; 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment; 4B.8 Respect local 
context and communities; 6A.5 Planning Obligations 

Particular regard was had to the loss of the sheltered accommodation that would result from the proposed 
development but it was considered that this would be outweighed by the provision of much needed family type 
accommodation for rent, contributing to the Borough's housing stock, that would follow from the proposed 
development.  The impacts of the scheme in relation to transport would not be significantly different from the 
existing situation, and as the character of the sue would not be altering from the existing residential use, and 
as the unit numbers overall would decrease, there would be no harm arising in relation to amenity impacts, 
such as noise and disturbance from the use.   

No planning obligation has been sought in relation to this development as the scheme would not be likely to 
place additional pressure upon infrastructure such as transport, health and open spaces beyond that pressure 
which would be generated by the existing use and an exception to the council's policies in this regard is 
therefore acceptable.  

It was therefore considered appropriate to grant planning permission having regard to the policies considered 
and other material planning considerations. 

Informative

54



S
ca

le
 1

/1
25

0

D
at

e 
30

/1
2/

20
09

1 
G

R
O

V
E

 H
IL

L
 R

O
A

D
, S

E
5

A
D

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



S
ca

le
 1

/1
25

0

D
at

e 
30

/1
2/

20
09

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
 L

O
D

G
E

, 1
 G

R
O

V
E

 H
IL

L
 R

O
A

D
, L

O
N

D
O

N
, S

E
5 

8D
F

A
D

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST   MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009-2010

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL

NOTE: Original held by Community Councils Team; amendments to Tim Murtagh (Tel: 020 7525 7187) 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES

To all Members of the Community Council: 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle Chair                               1   
Councillor Ian Wingfield Vice Chair   1  
Councillor John Friary                                        1
Councillor Peter John                                                 1 
Councillor Jenny Jones                                               1 
Councillor Alison McGovern                                       1 
Councillor Christopher Page                                       1 
Councillor Sandra Rhule 1
Councillor Veronica Ward                                           1 

LIBRARIES 6
Local Studies Library 1

PRESS
Southwark News                                                       1
South London Press                                                     1

MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Harriet Harman  MP 1
Tessa Jowell MP 1

COUNCIL OFFICERS 
Nicky Bradbury, Legal Serv. Hub 2 Tooley Street           
1

Constitutional Officer (CCs) 20
(Hub 2, Tooley Street, SE1) 

EXTERNAL
 1
Borough Commander 
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL 

Mr Lee Bartlett                                                      1 
The PC Shop 
120 -132 Camberwell Road 
SE5 OEE

TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Southwark Branch       
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX                                    1
TGWU/AC                                          1   
Tony O’Brien, UCATT            1

Geoffrey Bannister                                                 1 
LBS Audit Manager 
Ground Floor, Tooley Street, SE1 

CAMBERWELL AREA HOUSING OFFICE       2 

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION                                     48

Dated: January 5 2010

Agenda Annex
99


	Agenda
	6 Development Control Items
	items
	Item 1 site plan
	Item 1 rep
	Item1 rec
	Item 2 site plan
	Item 2 rep
	Item 2 rec
	Item 3 - Site Plan
	Item 3 rep
	Item 3 rec
	Item 4 - Site Plan (2)
	Item 4 Report
	Item 4 Recommendation
	Item 5 - Site Plan
	Item 5  rep
	Item 5  rec

	Information to members of the public

